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June 22, 2009 
 
To the Citizens, Mayor, and City Council of the City of North Miami Beach: 
 
Issued herewith is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of North 
Miami Beach for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008.  The CAFR is issued pursuant to 
the following requirements: 
 

 The City's charter requires an annual audit of the books of 
account, financial records and transactions of all 
departments of the City by independent certified public 
accountants. 

 State law requires that within one year of the close of 
each fiscal year all general purpose local governments 
publish a complete set of financial statements presented 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) in the United States and audited in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by 
a firm of licensed certified public accountants.   

 
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of 
North Miami Beach.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the 
completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report.  To provide a 
reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has established 
a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the City’s assets 
from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of 
the City of North Miami Beach's financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the 
cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive 
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute 
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.  As 
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is 
complete and reliable in all material respects. 
 
MarcumRachlin, a division of Marcum LLP, a licensed certified public accounting firm, has 
audited the City’s financial statements.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2008, were free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved 
examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  Based upon their 
audit, the independent auditors concluded that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unqualified opinion that the City of North Miami Beach's financial statements for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The report of 
the independent certified public accountants is presented as the first component of the 
financial section of this report. 
GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and 
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Analysis (MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be 
read in conjunction with it.  The City of North Miami Beach's MD&A can be found immediately 
following the report of the independent certified public accountants. 
 
Profile of the Government 
 
The City of North Miami Beach was incorporated on October 4, 1926 and operates under a 
Council-Manager form of government.  The City Council is comprised of the Mayor and six 
Council members.  Together they are responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions and 
regulations governing the City as well as appointing the members of various advisory boards, 
the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk.  As Chief Administrative Officer, the City 
Manager is responsible for enforcement of laws and ordinances and appoints and supervises 
the department heads of the City. 
 
The City of North Miami Beach is a first-tier suburb located in northeastern Miami-Dade 
County, which is in the southeast part of Florida.  Located midway between Miami and Fort 

Lauderdale with excellent regional highway access, it is 
primarily a residential and shopping community.  Single-
family and multi-family residential uses amount to 38 percent 
and 12 percent, respectively, of the City’s land area.  
Commercial uses represent 15 percent of the City’s land 
area.  Industrial development occupies only 5 percent of the 
City’s land area. Actual manufacturing activities are limited to 
a few small fabricating enterprises.  Recreational uses 
represent 10 percent of the City’s land area.  The remaining 
land area is occupied by schools, churches and other related 
establishments. 
 
The City of North Miami Beach provides the full range of 
municipal services for its citizens. These include public 
safety (fire protection is provided by Miami-Dade County), 
water, sewer, and stormwater utilities, sanitation services, 
public works, parks and recreation facilities, public library, 
code compliance, planning and zoning, real estate and 
economic development, and general and administrative 
services. 

 
The North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the CRA) was created by the 
Mayor and City Council on December 21, 2004 by adopting a resolution declaring the Mayor 
and City Council to be the Agency in accordance with Section 163.357 of the Florida Statutes 
under the Community Redevelopment Act of 1969, enacted by Florida Legislature.  The 
CRA’s board of directors is the City Council.  The CRA’s chairman is the City’s Mayor and 
the CRA’s administrator is the City Manager.  The purpose of the CRA is the elimination and 
prevention of blight conditions within the designated community redevelopment area.  The 
CRA is a special revenue fund of the City of North Miami Beach and, therefore, has been 
included as a component unit and integral part of the attached financial statements.  
Additional information on this component unit can be found in the notes to the financial 
statements starting on page 32.   
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of North Miami Beach's financial 
planning and control.  All departments of the City are required to submit requests for 
appropriation to the City Manager and these requests are the starting point for developing a 
proposed budget.  The City Manager, thereafter, proposes a budget to the Council for 
review.  The Council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt 
a final budget no later than September 30, the close of the City's fiscal year.  The budget is 
legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.  The appropriated budget is prepared 
by fund and department (e.g., police).  No department may legally expend in excess of 
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amounts appropriated for that department within an individual fund.  The City Manager may 
make transfers of appropriations within a department and to a department from his 
contingency account.  Transfers of appropriations between departments, however, require 
the approval of the City Council.  The City Council approves supplemental appropriations; 
however, the City Manager is granted authority to amend, modify, or otherwise adjust the 
annual budget to a maximum limit of $50,000 per individual occurrence.  Budget-to-actual 
comparisons are provided in this report for the general fund for which an appropriated annual 
budget has been adopted.  For the general fund, this comparison is presented on pages 74-
76 as part of the required supplementary information. 
 
Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of 
North Miami Beach operates. 
 
Local economy.  The economy, in general, began to decline in FY 2007 and the decline 
continues as of the writing of this report.  The local economy’s difficulties mirror those on the 
national, state and regional scales.  Home prices continued a precipitous drop in FY 2008.   
Foreclosures also continued a steep rise as the impact of the sub-prime mortgage company 
failures reached its peak.  These two issues continue to directly affect the operations of 
municipal governments, including the City of North Miami Beach.  
 
Meanwhile, in FY 2007 the legislature considered and adopted property tax reform which has 
significant implications for the future of local government revenues. 
 
Long-term financial planning.    As a result of the economic downturn and property tax 
reform, it became evident during FY 2008 that the City’s long term financial plans would 
require adjustment.  The Comprehensive Assessment of Revenues and Expenses (C.A.R.E.) 
Program, a 10-point city manager initiative was launched to maximize the City's human, 
capital and natural resources. C.A.R.E. establishes a sound 
financial management and responsible and cost-effective 
use of public funds.  Prompted by the urgent need to 
drastically reduce spending, increase revenues and protect 
the environment, the C.A.R.E. program is designed to 
encourage city employees, residents and businesses to take 
an active role in providing suggestions and solutions on how 
the city conducts business. The program is overseen by ten 
committees which focus on specific areas such as: capital 
improvements; workplace efficiency; expenditures; 
revenues; public/private partnerships; grants; reserves; 
volunteer programs; energy policy and conservation.  Since its inception, the C.A.R.E. 
program has generated a sense of community, fiscal awareness and responsibility within 
employee ranks and city wide.   
The City of North Miami Beach now has a fully operational Community Redevelopment 
Agency (CRA). The CRA is active in revitalizing business districts and neighborhoods by 
providing needed financial support for projects and programs aimed at increasing economic 
activity and improving the quality of life. For Fiscal Year 2008, the CRA’s increment revenue 
grew to $1.9 million and those funds in addition to loan proceeds were expended on such 
things as commercial and residential property improvements, new commercial and 
residential development, street improvements, parks and playgrounds, parking facilities, 
business promotion, marketing and promoting the CRA area, and more.   
Continuing initiatives.  The City of North Miami Beach’s $70 million dollar water treatment 
plant expansion was significantly completed in 2008 and includes the use of the most 
advanced membrane technology available.  This Norwood Water Treatment Plant Expansion 
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Program distinguishes the North Miami Beach Public Services Department as the first water 
utility in Miami-Dade County to tap into an alternative water supply, the Floridan Aquifer and 
to utilize the latest advances in water treatment—nanofiltration and reverse osmosis. These 
state-of-the-art water treatment processes, along with the traditional lime-softening water 
treatment process, allow North Miami Beach to continue to provide its customers with the 
best-tasting water on tap.  The North Miami Beach water utility serves more than 180,000 
customers and is the second-largest water producer in Miami-Dade County, serving North 
Miami Beach, Miami Gardens, portions of Aventura, Sunny Isles Beach and portions of 
unincorporated North Dade. 
 
Phase three of the sewer and stormwater projects in Highland Village was completed in fiscal 
year 2008.  Homeowners within the area where sewers were 
installed have been in the process of making the required 
connections. Funding for loans to homeowners for required 
connections was in the process of being secured.  In addition to 
sanitary sewers, this multi-phased project includes stormwater 
and street improvements in the area. 
 
New initiatives.  With restrictions placed on our traditional water 
source—the Biscayne Aquifer—the NMB Public Services 
Department has been proactive in finding alternative water 
sources, while seeking new ways to reduce potable water usage 
in the city.  The development and installation of a 30,000-gallon 
rain-harvesting system for the department’s Operations Center 
landscape irrigation system was completed in 2008.  With an 
annual average rainfall of sixty inches in South Florida, a rain-
harvesting system is a perfect conservation method, a natural fit 
for this City facility, and it offers a considerable water savings per 
year.  
During FY08 the City of North Miami Public Services Department conducted a Fixed Base 
Automated Meter Reading (AMR) pilot program.  Over 300 digital water meters were installed 
throughout the water-distribution system.  A majority of the funding for the pilot program 
came from a South Florida Water Management District grant.   

 
AMR utilizes digital water meters that use wireless technology to send up-to-the-minute 
readings to collection units in the water service area, enabling the utility to detect leaks and 
notify the customers in a timely fashion.  Once the entire 33,000 meters in the water service 
area have been updated, customers can expect more timely water bills and information 
regarding their water consumption.  The utility will be able to monitor large and small water 
consumers and thus help them to conserve our precious water resources for the future. 
 
Relevant financial policies 
 
In general, it is the City’s policy to consistently add to the City’s reserve each year and Fiscal 
Year 2008 was no exception. The commitment against unrestricted net asset balance is 
intended to be a bottom line for the City and its related governmental and business-type 
activities.  While the City Council and City Administration may have varying commitments 
against these balances theses choices are subject to be revised/changed by the Council.    
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
 
As management of the City of North Miami Beach, we offer readers of the City’s financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2008.  Readers are encouraged to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in the letter of 
transmittal, which can be found on pages i to v of this report. 
 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
• The assets of the City of North Miami Beach exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most 

recent fiscal year by $121.0 million (net assets).  Of this amount, $2.1 million (unrestricted 
net assets) may be used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 

• The City’s total net assets overall increased by $7.5 million during the current fiscal year. 
 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $17.4 million, an increase of $4.4 million in comparison with the 
prior year. Approximately one third of this total amount is available for spending at the 
government’s discretion (unreserved fund balance). 

 
• At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved undesignated fund balance for the General 

Fund was $6.5 million, or 12.6 percent of total General Fund expenditures. 
 
• At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted net assets for the Water Fund are negative 

$6.0 million.  This was a significant decrease over last year’s $3.7 million, primarily because 
a large portion was expended from the restricted funding sources. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of North Miami 
Beach’s basic financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements consist of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes 
to the financial statements.  In addition to these basic financial statements, this report contains 
other supplementary information. 
 
Government-wide financial statements:  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving 
or deteriorating. 
 



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
 
 
 

-4- 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the City include 
public safety (fire protection is provided by Miami-Dade County), sanitation services, public 
works, parks and recreation facilities, public library, code compliance, planning and zoning, real 
estate and economic development, and general and administrative services.  The business-type 
activities of the City include water, sewer, and stormwater operations. 
 
The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of North Miami Beach itself 
(known as the primary government), but also a legally separate community redevelopment 
agency for which the City is financially accountable.  This component unit functions for all 
practicable purposes as a department and special revenue fund of the City and has been included 
as an integral part of the primary government.  
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 20-21 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be 
useful in evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, which is considered to be a 
major fund.  Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in 
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund.  A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report. 
 
Proprietary funds:  The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.  Enterprise funds are used 
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, and 
stormwater operations. 
 
The proprietary fund provides the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the water, sewer, and stormwater operations, which are considered to be major 
funds of the City. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-29 of this report. 
 
Fiduciary funds:  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the City.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own 
programs.  Fiduciary funds are accounted for in a manner similar to proprietary funds. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30-31 of this report. 
 
Notes to the financial statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
Note 12 contains information regarding the Community Redevelopment Agency, which is a 
component unit. 
 
The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 32-73 of this report. 
 
Other information:  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information including the budgetary 
comparison schedule of the General Fund and information concerning the City's progress in 
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. 
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Required supplementary information can be found on pages 74-84 of this report. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non major governmental funds 
are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.  Budgetary 
comparison schedules are included for non major governmental funds that adopt budgets. 
 
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 85-104 of this 
report. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
Net assets may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position.  The City of North 
Miami Beach's total net assets exceeded liabilities by $121.0 million at the close of this fiscal year.  
This was an increase of approximately seven percent compared to last year's net assets of $113.4 
million.  The chart below shows a steady and gradual increase over the last eight fiscal years. 
 

City of North Miami Beach’s Total Net Assets 
(in millions) 
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The largest portion of the City’s net assets (89 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g.; land, buildings, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are 
still outstanding.  Capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; and thus, they are not 
available for future spending.  The City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related 
debt.  The resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
Some of the City’s net assets (2 percent) are subject to external restrictions on how they may be 
used.  These assets have been set aside for the completion of capital projects, inplant, debt 
service payments, or law enforcement and grant related expenditures. 
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The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (9 percent) may be used to meet the City’s 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  The amount of the City's total unrestricted net 
assets increased by $2.8 million compared to last fiscal year with the bulk of the increase 
occurring in the water utility system. 
 

City of North Miami Beach's Net Assets (in $ millions) – Government-wide 
 

  
Total Total

Current and other assets 23.2$       8.8$          32.0$     17.0$     9.1$            26.1$     
Restricted assets 1.1           1.0            2.1         1.7         6.3              8.0         
Capital assets, net 67.5         158.6        226.1     65.4       148.0          213.4     
      Total assets 91.8         168.4        260.2     84.1       163.4          247.5     
Long-term liabilities 44.5         75.1          119.6     43.2       76.2            119.4     
Other liabilities 5.4           14.2          19.6       4.9         9.7              14.6       
      Total liabilities 49.9         89.3          139.2     48.1       85.9            134.0     

Net assets:
   Invested in capital assets, 
      net of related debt 32.5         84.1          116.6     27.8       67.7            95.5       
   Restricted 2.1           0.1            2.2         3.4         5.1              8.5         
   Unrestricted 7.3           (5.1)           2.2         4.8         4.6              9.4         
         Total net assets 41.9$       79.1$        121.0$   36.0$     77.4$          113.4$   

Business-type
Activities

2008 2007
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities
Governmental

Activities
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City of North Miami Beach's Changes in Net Assets (in $ millions) – Government-wide 
 

Governmental Business-type  Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities

Revenues:
   Program revenues:
      Charges for services 19.9$                 30.6$                 50.5$    19.3$                 25.2$                 
      Operating grants & contributions 1.8                     1.4                     3.2        3.5                     1.3                     
      Capital grants & contributions -                      1.4                     1.4        0.1                     3.5                     
General revenues:
   Property taxes 19.7                   -                      19.7      19.2                   -                      
   Other taxes 6.8                     -                      6.8        6.7                     -                      
   Intergovernmental (including sales tax) 8.4                     -                      8.4        8.1                     -                      
   Other miscellaneous 1.6                     0.7                     2.3        2.0                     1.3                     
      Total revenues 58.2                   34.1                   92.3      58.9                   31.3                   
Expenses:
   General government 14.9                   -                      14.9      17.4                   -                      
   Public safety 23.3                   -                      23.3      21.6                   -                      
   Library 1.0                     -                      1.0        1.2                     -                      
   Parks and recreation 4.9                     -                      4.9        4.8                     -                      
   Public services 11.6                   -                      11.6      10.7                   -                      
   Interest on long-term debt 1.9                     -                      1.9        2.0                     -                      
   Water -                      18.4                   18.4      -                      19.6                   
   Sewer -                      4.4                     4.4        -                      4.2                     
   Stormwater -                      0.8                     0.8        -                      0.8                     
     Total expenses 57.6                   23.6                   81.2      57.7                   24.6                   
Increase in net assets before transfers 0.6                     10.5                   11.1      1.2                     6.7                     
Transfers 5.3                     (5.3)                   -          5.0                     (5.0)                   
Change in net assets 5.9                     5.2                     11.1      6.2                     1.7                     
Net assets - beginning 36.0                   77.4                   113.4    29.8                   75.7                   
Prior period adjustment -                      (3.5)                   (3.5)       -                      -                      
Net assets beginning as restated 36.0                   73.9                   109.9    -                      -                      
Net assets - ending 41.9$                 79.1$                 121.0$  36.0$                 77.4$                 

2008 2007

 
Governmental activities:  Net assets of the City's governmental activities increased by seventeen 
percent from $36.0 million in the last fiscal year compared to $41.9 million in the current fiscal 
year.  Small increases in revenues received from property taxes, charges for services and capital 
grants and contributions, offset by minor decreases in operating grants and contributions and other 
miscellaneous revenue, overall resulted in a slight decrease of revenues.  The City reduced its 
expenditures by over $2.5 million from general government, although police services expenditures 
increased $1.7 million.  Overall, the City increased its net assets by approximately $5.9 million due 
primarily to inter-fund transfers from the Enterprise funds. 
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Governmental Activities – Total Net Assets 
(In millions) 

 

 
 
 
Business-type activities:  The City's net assets of the business-type activities increased by two 
percent from $77.4 million in last fiscal year compared to $79.1 million in the current fiscal year.  
A significant decrease in the restricted net assets occurred as restricted bond proceeds and impact 
funds were spent on the water treatment plant expansion.  While the restricted net assets are 
decreasing, there is an offsetting increase in investment in capital assets as the bond proceeds and 
various grant monies are used to construct the plant and other capital items. 
 

Business-type Activities – Total Net Assets 
(In millions) 
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Impact revenue increased slightly as new private development in the water and sewer service 
areas expanded.  These restricted impact funds can only be used for increasing the system’s 
capacity or for meeting Miami-Dade County fire-flow requirements. 
 
 
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds 
 
The City of North Miami Beach uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds:  The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in 
assessing the City’s financing requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as 
a useful measure of the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances (reserved, designated, and undesignated) of $17.4 million, an increase of $4.4 
million in comparison with the prior year.  The increase was due to the City receiving proceeds 
from credit facilities for the Community Redevelopment Agency of $4.0 million; $3.0 million 
and $1.0 million to be needed respectively in the upcoming years for infrastructure 
improvements and land acquisitions. 
 
Unreserved fund balance is the portion of what is available for spending at the City’s discretion.  
This year, 76 percent of fund balance ($13.2 million) constitutes unreserved fund balance. Of 
this amount, the Council has designated approximately $1.9 million for land acquisition, liability 
and workers’ compensation claims and an additional $4.7 million has been set aside for special 
grant and transportation purposes and approximately $6.6 as undesignated.  The remainder of 
fund balance is reserved to indicate it is not available for new spending because it has already 
been committed for a variety of restricted purposes, such as construction projects, grant 
expenditures and encumbrances. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  General tax revenues and other 
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for 
in this fund.  General operating expenses, fixed charges and capital improvement costs not paid 
through other funds are paid from this fund.  At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved 
undesignated fund balance of the General Fund was $6.5 million, unreserved designated fund 
balance was $1.9 million and reserved fund balance was $1.9 million, for a total fund balance of 
$10.3 million.  Last fiscal year the General Fund’s total fund balance was $8.6 million. 
 
Total General Fund revenue increased by $1.7 million compared to the prior fiscal year. 
Increases were due mainly to a Water Surcharge that the City charges to customers outside City 
limits that use City water. 
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FY 08 General Fund Revenues
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Total General Fund expenditures also decreased by $1.8 million as compared to the prior year. 
General government decreased by approximately $1.0 million which was due to the City 
streamlining and consolidating departments to operate in a more efficient manner: Police 
services posted an increase of approximately $1.4 million which was a result of an increase in 
the pension contribution and a wage increase of the police union contract.  Parks and recreation 
showed a slight increase which is related to normal salary and benefit costs.  However, the 
biggest contributor to the decrease in expenditures was a reduced capital outlay by the City in 
fiscal year 2008 which mirrored the downturn in the economy. 
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Proprietary funds:  The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
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Unrestricted net assets for the enterprise funds at the end of the year were a negative $5.0 
million.  This negative balance was comprised of the following: Water Fund negative balance of 
$6.0 million, Sewer Fund positive balance of $0.7 million, and Stormwater Fund positive 
balance of $0.3 million. 
 
The Water Fund’s unrestricted net assets decreased by $9.7 million.  The City’s unrestricted net 
assets reflect all liabilities that are not related to capital assets or restricted assets.  In general, 
accounting statements show a liability when it is incurred while financing and budgeting 
statements focus on when a liability is paid.  The City budgets for and raises operating revenues 
during the year in which a liability is to be liquidated, rather than during the year in which the 
liability is incurred.  As the chart indicates, as more of the water treatment plant construction 
phases are completed, the various capital and capital-related financing activities have been 
changing.  The restricted assets that fund the capital construction are decreasing as the City’s 
investment in these capital assets is increasing.  The City made a diligent effort to keep operating 
income sufficient to cover its operating activities.  This trend will continue to be monitored and 
adjustments may still need to be made in future budget years. 
 

 
 

Water Fund capital contributions and impact fee revenue decreased by approximately $2.2 
million compared to last year.  The effects of the weak outlook in the commercial property 
segment and high-rise condominium construction markets have continued to impact these 
revenue sources.  This resulted in the developer-required contributions and impact fees 
decreasing by 59 percent this year. 
 
This, in turn, decreased restricted net assets in the Water Fund.  Most of the inplant and fireflow 
reserves and the entire bond proceeds will be used for the water treatment plant expansion 
project in future fiscal years.  In fiscal year 2008, $15 million was expended from all restricted 
funding sources.  The majority of the expenditures were for the water treatment plant. 
 
In the Sewer Fund, net assets increased by $1.3 million and in the Stormwater Fund, net assets 
increased by $0.2 million.  Intergovernmental revenues in the Water Fund decreased and the Sewer 
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Fund increased as the grant related activity of the City’s portion of the Highland Village Sewer 
Improvement Project Phase III and the individual residents’ connection into the new system. 
 
Selected data (in $ millions) from the City’s Proprietary Funds are shown below: 
 

Water Sewer Stormwater  Water Sewer Stormwater  
Utility Utility Utility Total Utility Utility Utility Total

Revenues:
   Operating revenues 23.4$   5.9$      1.3$               30.6$  18.8$   5.1$      1.3$               25.2$  
Expenses:
   Operating expenses 11.7     3.8        0.5                 16.0    14.0     3.4        0.6                 18.0    
   Depreciation 3.3       0.7       0.1               4.1    2.5     0.6       0.1                 3.2    
      Total expenses 15.0     4.5       0.6               20.1  16.5   4.0       0.7                 21.2  
Operating income 8.4       1.4        0.7                 10.5    2.3       1.1        0.6                 4.0      
Non-operating revenue (expense) (2.5)      1.0        -                  (1.5)    (1.0)      0.3        (0.1)               (0.8)    
Capital contributions 1.3       0.1        -                  1.4      3.2       0.3        -                  3.5      
Transfers (3.6)      (1.3)      (0.1)               (5.0)    (3.4)      (1.2)      0.4                 (4.2)    
Changes in net assets 3.7       1.3        0.2                 5.2      1.1       0.5        0.1                 1.7      
Net assets - beginning 54.7     20.0      2.7                 77.4    53.6     19.5      2.6                 75.7    
Prior period adjustment (3.5)      -         -                  (3.5)    -         -         -                  -        
Net asset, beginning as restated 51.2     20.0      2.7                 73.9    53.6     19.5      2.6                 75.7    
Net assets - ending 54.9$   21.3$    2.9$               79.1$  54.7$   20.0$    2.7$               77.4$  

2008 2007

 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
A budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund is part of the required supplementary 
information and can be found on pages 74-76 of this report. 
 
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget amounted to 
approximately $796,000 this year and can be briefly summarized as follows: 
 
• New or expanded capital improvement projects, including expenditures to the Columbia 

Bridge of $235,000, plus various roadway construction in the amount of $75,000 plus 
various new equipment costing $126,000. 

• Increases in required pension plan contributions totaled $244,000 and were funded when 
additional unanticipated revenue including intergovernmental funding was received thus 
allowing for the additional expenditures. 

• Other normal operation of business to provide continued service to our resident totaled 
approximately $116,000. 

 
The differences in the actual revenues and expenditures as compared to the final amended 
budget are summarized as follows: 
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• For the second consecutive year, the City’s housing market was the victim of a depressed 
economy.  Therefore, actual building permits and fees experienced another negative 
variance for the year in the amount of $400,000 as compared to the budgeted amount. 

• The franchise fee and utility tax revenues received from Florida Power and Light Company 
(FPL) were slightly higher than budgeted.  The combined revenue received was $505,000 
more than expected.  This was due in part to higher fuel costs passed on to customers by 
FPL and a surcharge to provide for hurricane preparedness.   

• Overall, departments’ current expenditures were in line with budgeted expenditures due to 
the City implementing some cost saving strategies. 

• The Human Resources and Parks and Recreation Departments experienced a combined 
$846,000 positive variance compared to the budgeted amounts due to effective and 
efficient strategies initiated to reduce expenditures. 
 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets:  The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of September 30, 2008 amounted to $226.1 million (net of accumulated depreciation). 
 
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, 
and machinery and equipment.  The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets for 
the current fiscal year was 9 percent. 
 

City of North Miami Beach's Capital Assets (net of depreciation, in millions) 
 

Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental type Total mental type

Land 4.3$      5.9$        10.2$    4.3$      5.9$        
Buildings and plant 10.5      137.2      147.7    11.8      65.6        
Improvements other than buildings 7.8        -            7.8        7.2        -            
Furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment 6.8        2.3          9.1        7.3        2.5          
Infrastructure 3.4        -            3.4        3.6        -            
Construction in progress 34.8      13.1        47.9      31.1      74.0        
   Total capital assets 67.6$    158.5$    226.1$  65.3$    148.0$    

2008 2007

 
Approximately $5.9 million in capital assets was acquired within governmental activities and 
includes the following items: 
 
• The improvements and restorations to Hanford Boulevard continued construction at an 

additional cost of $2.1 million. 

• Renovations and improvements to the pools within the Victory Pool Complex continued at 
an additional cost of $.6 million and are in the final stage of completion. 



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
 
 
 

-15- 

• Improvements and restoration to the alley ways and the Columbia Bridge installation 
amounted to $1.1 million. 

• Equipment purchases of $1.1 million included the purchase of vehicles for various 
departments, the replacement of library books, the upgrades to computers and laptops, the 
installation of police trunk radios, and riding lawn mower. 

• Construction in progress citywide totaled $1.0 million.  This construction and 
improvements included street renovation and resurfacing, installation of bus shelters and 
fences. 

 
Business-type activities acquired approximately $89.3 million in capital assets prior to 
depreciation.  The majority of the increase in capital assets is attributed to the Norwood Water 
Treatment Plant Expansion Project. 
 
• The Norwood Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project is in its final stage of completion; 

the cost to date for this project is approximately $65.7 million. 

• The installation of a Stormwater system and a pumping station within the Highland Village 
area was completed at a cost of $2.1 million. 

• Developers contributed to the water distribution system at approximately $.8 million. 

• Construction in progress totaled $14.0 million for various projects such as the operation 
center water storage tank and pump station, rehabilitation of lift stations and sewer pump 
stations, and wastewater system improvements. 

• The replacing of certain septic tanks with a City Sewer Sanitary System was completed 
within the Highland Village area at a cost of $6.3 million. 

 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 starting on page 46 of 
this report. 
 
Long-term Debt:  Governmental Activities debt increased in 2001 with the issuance of the 
voter-approved Proud Neighborhood bonds and increased again in 2004 with the issuance of the 
pledged Transit Surtax bonds.  In 2002, the Norwood Water Treatment Plant bonds significantly 
increased the Business-type Activities debt. 
 
In 2007, the City received an updated credit report and rating letter which indicated that Standard 
and Poor’s Rating Services affirmed its “A” underlying rating (SPUR) with a stable outlook on 
the City’s water revenue bonds. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $105.2 
million.  Of this amount, $25.8 million in debt was approved by referendum by the City's voters.  
The guaranteed portion of State Revenue Sharing was pledged to secure a net outstanding 
balance of $1.4 million in debt.  The remainder of the City's debt ($78.1 million) represents 
bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources, such as water utility revenue and transit 
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surtaxes.  Additionally, no new bond issues or refinancing occurred and normal debt service 
repayments resulted in an overall $1.8 million decrease in outstanding bonded debt.  Additional 
information on the City’s long term debt can be found in Note 9 starting on page 50 of this 
report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 
The City's local economy is based primarily on retail and service activities.  The occupancy rates 
of the City's retail establishments and office structures are 89 percent and 78 percent, 
respectively.  Even though the City itself is not a popular tourist location, many of its residents 
and businesses have begun to feel the effects of the current economic issues in Florida's tourism 
industry as a whole. 
 
Per the U. S. Department of Labor, the unemployment rate for South Florida is currently 6.7 
percent, up from 4.2 percent a year ago. South Florida has been hit especially hard from the 
failure of the housing market; foreclosures in the City of North Miami Beach have reached 1,000 
homes.  But it is not all doom and gloom, the City of North Miami Beach is primed to receive 
Stimulus funds and a Neighborhood Stabilization Grant which will help rehab the foreclosed 
homes and put them back in the market. 
 
During the current fiscal year, unreserved undesignated fund balance in the General Fund increased 
$1.9 million.  Fiscal prudence influenced the City’s decision to build up its fund balance; therefore, 
no unreserved fund balance was appropriated for use in the 2008 fiscal year budget. 
 
Each year, the City renews a short-term line of credit to be used for emergencies, such as 
hurricane expenses, as well as for operating expenses while awaiting receipt of property tax 
revenue.  Of the $2.5 million available in the line of credit, the City drew down $150,000 in 
fiscal year 2008. 
 
In 1995, the State of Florida limited all local governments' ability to raise property assessments 
of homestead property in any given year to 3 percent or cost of living, whichever is lower.  
Statutory changes to the state’s tax laws were passed by the Florida Legislature on June 14, 2007 
and signed into law on June 21, 2007.  Implementation of a key provision of the law started for 
budgets beginning in fiscal year 2008 and provided maximum millage rates for all local 
governments including counties, municipalities and special taxing districts.  The maximum 
millage allowed is based on each government’s compound annual growth in per capita property 
taxes levied from fiscal year 2002 to 2007.  In effect, the State required all governments to 
decrease property taxes by rolling back the operating millage rate to fiscal year 2002 values.  The 
City lowered its millage rate by 11% changing the rate from 7.50 to 6.6905 in fiscal year 2007 
and another 1% decrease was done in fiscal year 2008 changing from 6.6905 to 6.6236. 
 
The City's operating millage (property tax rate) has been reduced or has remained steady over the 
last ten years with the exception of the 2007 when it dropped to 6.6905 mills and 2008 when it was 
further reduced to 6.6236 mills.  The new tax laws dramatically changed the 2008 millage rate.  
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While these mandates have limited the City's available property tax revenue, the City's operational 
expenditures, such as salaries, health insurance, and pension contributions, continue to increase.  
The City negotiated a three-year contract with the general employee’s union, which will expire on 
September 30, 2010.  The police employee’s union contract will expire on September 30, 2009. 
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For many years, the City, just like many cities across the country, has had to deal with the 
conflict of keeping taxes and service charges as low as possible while cost of service requests 
from taxpayers continue to rise. 
 
Besides property taxes, the City’s other major revenue source is water utility revenue.  For water 
and sewer rates, an automatic annual rate indexing adjustment is in effect in accordance with the 
Florida Public Service Commission deflator index.  For the fiscal year 2008 budget, the 
adjustment increased the rates charged for water and sewer consumption by 2.50 percent.  
Additionally, rate structure changes were approved starting in the fiscal year 2007 budget.  As 
well as water conservation block modifications, the rate charged will also be based on the meter 
size.  The bulk of the changes impacted the multi-family customers. 
 
In fiscal year 2002, the City issued bonds in the amount of $66.4 million for the expansion and 
improvement of the Norwood water treatment plant, including the installation of new wells into 
both the Biscayne and Floridan aquifers.  The water treatment plant expansion will improve 
treatment levels and water quality as well as provide future water availability.  By allowing the 
City to become independent of Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer Department, the City can 
control its rates more efficiently and become a major water source in South Florida. 
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The new Norwood Water Treatment Plant production capacity will almost double, producing up 
to 32 million gallons per day.  Because of the expansion, the City of North Miami Beach is the 
first water supplier in Miami-Dade County to utilize an alternative water supply and new 
membrane filtration technology.  The project is scheduled for final close-out for the summer of 
2009.  Since September 2007, the new membrane system has been producing 6 million gallons 
of water per day.  The City will continue to purchase water from Miami-Dade County on a 
wholesale basis to offset the difference between demand and production; however, the amount of 
water purchased has decreased substantially since September 2008. 
 
As the chart indicates, the City’s Norwood Water Treatment Plant production has increased 
while the amount of water purchased from Miami-Dade County has been steadily decreasing. 
Once the City’s Norwood Plant is fully operational, this trend should continue to reflect the 
decrease in the City’s dependence on Miami-Dade County to supply water for its customers.  As 
can be seen from the chart below, this trend has already commenced. 
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During fiscal year 2006, a consultant was engaged to perform a rate structure study.  The 
consultant recommended changes that are compatible with customers’ actual consumption and 
prevailing trends in rate design.  As a result, a new rate structure was approved which modified 
the minimum gallon set points and the underlying conservation blocks starting in fiscal year 
2007.  The City’s existing rates were then applied to this new rate structure.  As the conservation 
usage blocks were lowered, most users received an increase in their utility bills, with the multi-
family users receiving the highest increase as their blocks were substantially modified. 
 
In order to set rates to provide sufficient revenue and to accommodate future growth needs, a 
second, multi-phased rate study was performed in fiscal year 2007.  This rate study modified the 
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price per gallon charged for both water and sewer service.  The City Council chose to commit to 
rate increases over the next five years in order to provide a stable base for future growth needs 
and to enable the utility to meet all anticipated federal and state regulatory health, safety, and 
water quality mandates.  Thus, rates will increase 10% plus the deflator over the next five years.  
The additional amount received due to the increase can be set aside for future expansion and 
growth of the water system. 
 
Moreover, the fiscal year 2009 budget process focused on revenue enhancements and 
expenditure containment throughout the City.  The correction in the housing market is now 
entering its third year.  During this period, both commercial construction and residential 
construction declines were felt in the City’s budget as building permit revenue has decreased and 
impact fees that affect the water and general funds have leveled off.  All these factors will be 
considered in preparing the City’s future budgets. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of North Miami 
Beach’s finances for all those with an interest in the City’s finances. 
 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional 
financial information should be addressed to Susan A. Gooding-Liburd, Finance Director, 
Financial Services, City of North Miami Beach, 17011 N.E. 19th Avenue, North Miami Beach, 
Florida  33162. 
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of North Miami Beach (the City) was incorporated in 1926. The City operates under a
Council-Manager form of government. In addition to police services, general government,
library, recreation, sanitation and public works services provided to its residents, the City operates
water, sewer and stormwater utilities and maintains various trust and agency funds in a fiduciary
capacity. The City does not provide educational, fire or hospital facilities. Those services are
provided by the Miami-Dade County School Board and Miami-Dade County, respectively.

The basic fmancial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of
the City's accounting policies are described below.

a. Financial Reporting Entity

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards, which establishes standards for -defining and reporting on the fmancial reporting
entity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected
officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of
financial reporting is to provide users of fmancial statements with a basis for assessing the
accountability of the elected officials. The financial reporting entity consists of the primary
government, organizations for which the primary government. is fmancially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting ent.ity's financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete. the City is fmancially accountable for a component unit if it
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing board and it is able to impose its
will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific fmancial burdens on the City.

Component units are included in the reporting entity as blended or as discretely presented.
Ahhough legally separate entities, blended component units are, in substance, part of the
City's operations. Accordingly, data from these component units are combined with data of
the primary government.

Based upon the application of the criteria described above, the fmandal activity of the blended
component unit listed below has been included in the City's fmancial reporting entity.

The North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the CRA or Agency) was
created by the Mayor and City Council on December 21, 2004 by adopting a resolution
declaring the Mayor and City Council to be the Agency in accordance with Section
163.357 of the Florida Statutes under the Community Redevelopment Act of 1969, enacted
by the Florida Legislature. The CRA's board of directors is the City Council. The CRA's
chairman is the City's Mayor. The CRA has a September 30th year-end. The Community
Redevelopment Agency (CRA) provides services that exclusively benefit the City. The
purpose of the CRA is the elimination and prevention of blight conditions within the
designated Community Redevelopment Area.
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CITY OF NORTH M1AMI BEACH, F'LORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAJ.~TACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide fmancial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by
a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining nonmajor
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental funds.

c. Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized ac; revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurementfocus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within thc current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current flScal period. Expenditures are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Revenue for expenditure driven grants are recognized when the
qualifying expenditures are incurred. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the City.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUl.VIl\'lARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Utility System Fund accounts for the activities of providing water treatment and
distribution service to the property owners of the City and a portion of unincorporated
Miami-Dade County and some adjacent municipalities.

The Sewer Utility System Fund accounts for the operation of the sewage pumping stations
and collection systems to customers both inside and outside the City's boundaries.

The Stormwater Utility System Fund accounts for providing stormwater services to
residences and businesses within the City.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Other Governmental Funds are used to account for the nonmajor various special
revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

The Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Retirement Plan for General
Employees, the Retirement Plan for Police Officers and Firefighters and the Retirement
Plan and Trust for General Management Employees which accumulates resources for
pension benefits.

The Police Holding Account Agency Fund accounts for monies that have been seized but
not forfeited and are held in trust while waiting for adjudication.

Private-sector standards of accounting and fmancial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund fmancial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The City has the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this
same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government­
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and
other charges between the City's various utility functions and various other functions of the
City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c. Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City's water, sewer and stormwater utility funds are
charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this defmition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1. Pooled Cash and Investments

Pooled cash and investments include cash on hand and investments with the State Board of
Administration Investment Pool and the Florida Municipal Investment Trust.

Resources of all funds, with the exception of the pension trust funds, the agency fund and
certain other cash and investment accounts, have been combined into a pooled cash and
investment system for the purpose of maximizing earnings. Interest earned on pooled cash
and investments is allocated monthly based upon equity balances of the respective funds.

All investments of the City, except the State Board Investment Pool, are recorded at fair
value. The Investment Pool is recorded at its value of the pool shares (2A-7 Pool), which
is fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the statement of cash flows, includes pooled
cash and investments which are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds"
or "advances to/from other funds". Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as "internal balances".
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

2. Receivables and Payables (Continued)

Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reserve account in the applicable
governmental funds as reported in the fund financial statements. This is done to indicate that
they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available fmancial resources.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories in the general fund and the enterprise funds are stated at average cost on a
specific identification basis. Inventories, which consist of expendable supplies held for
consumption, are recorded as an asset when purchased and recorded as an expense when
consumed (consumption method).

Prepaid items are payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are reported in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, bike paths and similar items) are reported in the applicable
government or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Purchased or constructed assets are
recorded at actual cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is unavailable. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business­
type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and utility plant
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Capital lease equipment
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CITY OF NORTH M1Al"VII BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

5. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include resow'ces subject to externally imposed restrictions such as
creditors, grantors, laws and regulations. Restricted assets are also set aside to make debt
service payments on capital related debt. Generally, when the City enters into loan
agreements to finance the cost of capital improvement projects, the loan proceeds are
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets. In the City's enterprise funds,
revenue bond proceeds and certain resources that have been set aside for their repayment
are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in
separate bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. Escrow
funds held by agent are used to report the proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are
restricted for use in construction. Escrow funds held by lessor are used to report the
proceeds to capital lease agreements that are restricted for use in the acquisition of capital
equipment. Governmental and proprietary funds have impact fees as imposed under local
ordinances 2005-16, 2005-17 and 2006-20. The intent of these ordinances is to assist in
the implementation of the City's state-required comprehensive plan and to regulate the use
and development of land so as to assure that new development bears a proportionate share
of the cost of capital expenditures necessary to provide improvements to parIes and public
safety, as well as the City's water and sewer infrastructure for fireflow activities and plant
expansion improvements.

6. Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit full-time employees to accumulate limited amounts of
earned vacation and sick leave. Upon separation from service, employees receive payment
for a portion of unused vacation time and sick leave subject to length of service and
contract classification. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retirements. The general fund has typically been used to liquidate such
amounts.

7. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-tenn debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary
fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Assets, Liahilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

7. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other fmancing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other fmancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

8. Property Taxes

Property taxes (ad valorem taxes) are assessed on January I (the lien date) and are billed
and payable November 1, with discounts of one to four percent ifpaid prior to March 1 of
the following calendar year. All unpaid taxes on real and personal property become
delinquent on April 1 and accrue interest charges from April 1 until a tax sale certificate is
sold at auction.

Assessed values are established by the Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser at
approximately fair market value. The County bills and collects all property taxes for the
City. Due to the immaterial amount of any additional property taxes receivable after the 60
day period, no additional accrual is made in the government-wide financial statements, or
in the fund financial statements.

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county,
municipal, school district and special district property taxes are consolidated in the offices
of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The City is permitted by
Article 7, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution to levy taxes up to $10 (10 mills) per
$1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental services (other than the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt). In addition, unlimited
amounts may be levied for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation
long-term debt, subject to a limitation on the amount of debt outstanding. The Florida
Legislature passed House Bill 1B on Thursday, June 14, 2007. This legislation includes
substantial requirements affecting the 2007-08 millage and budget adoption process over
which the Department of Revenue has given oversight responsibilities. The millage rate to
finance general governmental services for the year ended September 30,2008 was 6.6236
mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation; the millage rate for bonded debt service was 0.8139
mills.

9. Use of Estimates

The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in confonnity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Management is required to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Assetv, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

9. Use of Estimates (Continued)

the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
revenue and expenses during the period reported. These estimates include assessing the
collectibiJity of accounts receivable, the use and recoverability of inventory, the pension
and post-retirement obligations, and useful lives and impainnent of tangible assets, among
others. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects ofrevisions
are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

10. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balances represent management
plans that are subject to change.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSBIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

FundDeficit

At September 30, 2009, the City had a deficiency in its unrestricted net assets of the Water
Utility Fund in the amount of $6,015,380. This deficiency is anticipated to be eliminated over
the ensuring three years of operations.

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

GASB Statement No. 40 Deposits and Investment Risks Disclosures (GASB Statement No. 40)
amends GASB No.3, Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase
Agreements), and Reverse Purchase Agreements and is designed to inform financial statement
users about deposit and investment risks that could affect a government's ability to provide
services and meets its obligations as they become due. GASB Statement No. 40 addresses
common deposit and investment risks related to credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of
credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk and requires that deposit and investment
policies related to the risks be disclosed, as applicable.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, the following disclosures are made regarding the
City's deposit and investment balances as of September 30,2008:
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, all
deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida
to hold public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public
Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit
with the Treasurer or another banking institution eligible collateraL In the event of a failure of
a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be responsible for
covering any resulting losses. Accordingly, all amounts reported as deposits are deemed as
insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity's name.

Investments

Whereas the City has not adopted a written investment policy, investments are made in
accordance with provisions of the Florida Statutes. The City is authorized to invest in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, the State Board of Administration Investment Pool (SBA)
and fixed income funds ofthe Florida Municipal Investment Trust (FMIvT).

The State Board of Administration Pool (SBA) is part of the Florida Loeal Government
Surplus Funds Trust Fund and is governed by Ch. 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code.
These rules provide guidance and establish the general operating procedures for the
administration of the Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. Additionally, the
Office of the Auditor General performs the operational audit of the activities and investments
of the State Board of Administration. The Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust
Fund is not a registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); however, the
board has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, the SBA has reported that the Local Government
Surplus Funds Trust Fund is a ''2a-7 like" pool and, therefore, these investments are valued
using the pooled share price.

The Florida Municipal Investment Trust (FMIvT) is an authorized investment under Section
218.415(15), Florida Statutes, for units oflocal government in Florida. It was created to offer
diversified and professionally managed portfolios for the investment of the assets of
participating municipalities. The Trustees of the Trust are designated as having official
custody of the funds, which are invested by the purchase of shares of beneficial interest in the
Trust. The Trust operates as a fiduciary trust fund under governmental accounting rules that
require the Trust to prepare a series of fmancial statements. The FMIvT is a Local
Governmental Investment Pool (LGIP), and therefore considered an external investment pool
for GASB reporting purposes. The City's investment is the FMIvT portfolio, not the
individual securities held within each portfolio.

The fair value of the position in the LGIP is equal to the value of the pool shares. The Fund B
is accounted for as a fluctuating NAV pool. As of September 30, 2008, the fair value factor
for Fund B was $.798385 per share. The Fund B is not subject to participant withdrawal
requests. Distributions from Fund B, as determined by the SBA, are effected by transferring

-40-



CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

eligible cash or securities to the LGIP, consistent v,'ith the pro rata allocation of pool
shareholders of record at the creation of Fund B. One hundred percent of such distributions
from Fund B are available as liquid balance within the LGIP. The investments in the LGIP
and Fund B are not insured by FDIC or any other governmental agency.

The three Pension Trust Plans are also authorized to invest in common stocks, corporate bonds
rated "A" or better by Standard & Poor's Corporation or "A" or better by Moody's bond
ratings.

Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments as of September 30, 2008 are classified in the accompanying
financial statements as follows:

Statement of net assets:
Cash and short-term investments
Restricted cash and short-term investments

Statement of fiduciary net assets:
Cash and short-term investments
Investments

Total cash and investments

$ 7,227,546
909,892

3,050
109,581,851

$117,722,3~

Cash on hand, deposits and investments as of September 30,2008 consist of the following:

Governmental and business-type investments:
Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
SBA
FMIvT

General employees pension plan:
Deposits with financial institutions
Investments in mutual funds

Police officers and firefighters pension plan:
Deposits with financial institutions
Investments in mutual funds
Investments in equity/common stock
Investments

Management employees pension plan:
Investments in mutual funds

Total cash and investments
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of its value due to a
real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt. A credit risk exists
when there is a possibility the issuer or other counterparty to an investment may be unable
to meet its obligations. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure of credit quality
ratings for investments in debt securities as well as investments in external investment
pools, money market funds, and other pooled investments of fixed income securities.

The City does not have a fonnal policy regarding credit risk; however, State law limits
investments to Securities and Exchange Commission required money market funds with
the highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized statistical rating organization
(NRSRO).

It is the City's intention to limit its investment in these investment types to the top rating
issued by NRSROs. Excess funds are sent to the Florida State Board of Administration
(SBA) for investment. The SBA does not have a rating from a NRSRO. As of
September 30, 200"8, the City's investment in the state investment pool is not rated by
any rating agencies.

FMlvT investment guidelines state that each fund will seek to maintain a bond fund credit
rating from a nationally recognized statistical rating organization of AAA. Funds having
an AAA bond fund credit rating are composed of a preponderance of assets that carry the
highest credit ratings from a NRSRO. Funds having an AA bond fund credit rating are
composed of a large percentage of assets that carry the highest credit rating from a
NRSRO. The funds may invest in corporate bonds issued by any corporation in the United
States with at least anA rating and collateralized mortgage obligations having a rating of
AAA. At September 30, 2008, Standard & Poor's rated the portfolio's investment, AAA
1/S1+.

FMIvT investment guidelines require that each fund will seek to maintain a bond funds
credit rating from a nationally recognized statistical rating organization of AAA.
Investments may be aggregated by rating categories within the disclosure. Ratings are set
by nationally recognized rating organizations (Fitch, Moody's, S&P). The City only
invested in the FMlvT 1-3 Year High Quality Fixed Income Bond. At September 30,
2008, Fitch rated the portfolio's investment AAAN2.

All three Pension Trust Plan's investment policy utilizes portfolio diversification in order
to control this risk. Additionally, the Police Officers and Firefighters Pension Plan's
investment policy requires investments in corporate bonds be rated "A" or better by
Standard and Poor's.
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures (Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

AA $ 10,931,506
AA 22,799,360
AM 2,309,203
AM 6,277,708

NR (not rated) 4,171,262
AAA 1,280,495
AA+ 212,056
AA 115,934
AA- 716,314
A+ 908,876
A 1,426,356
A- 312,115

BBB+ 20,027
BBB+ 2,771
BB+ 9,873
BBB 14,212
N/A 93,663
BB 10,215

$ 51,611,946

AM I/S1+ $ 9,813,971

$ 9,813,971

!116,3:J3,704

Investment Type

Governmental and business-type investments:
SBA
FMIvT

Total governmental and business-type investments

General employees pension plan:
Mutual funds

Total general employees pension plan

Police officers and firefighters pension plan:
Mutual funds
Equity
u.s. treasuries
u.s. agencies
U.S. agencies
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds
Corporate bonds

Total police officers and firefighters pension plan

Management employees pension plan:
FMIvT

Total management employees pension plan
Total all investments

Custodial Credit Risk

Credit Quality Rating

NR (not rated)

AAAlV2

AA

Fair Value

$ 2,170,409
4,591,445

$ 6,761,854

$ 48,155,933

!. ~,155,933

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City
or Pension Trust Plans will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investments in pools should be
disclosed, but not categorized under GASB Statement No. 40 because they are not
evidenced by security that exist in physical or book entry form.
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk (Continued)

The City does not have a custodial credit risk policy. The City's investments in both the
SBA and the FMIvT are evidenced by shares of the pool. The City's investment is with the
pools, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no further disclosure is required.

Consistent with the each Pension Trust Plan's investment policy, the investments are held
by each Plan's custodial bank and registered in each Plan's name.

Concentration Credit Risk

GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure of the concentration of credit risk when five or
more percent of the total assets of the portfolio are invested with a single issuer. Investments
issued or explicitly guaranteed by the US government and investments in mutual funds or
pools are exCluded from the concentration ofcredit risk disclosures requirements.

The City does not have a formal concentration of credit risk policy. Both the SBA and
FMIvT are pooled investments, therefore no additional disclosure is required.

All three Pension Trust Plan's investment policies have limitations on the amount that can
be invested in anyone issuer as well as maximum portfolio allocation percentages. There
were no individual investments that represent 5% or more of any Plan's net assets at
September 30,2008.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates could
adversely affect an investment's fair value. Generally, the longer the maturity of an
investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.
Interest rate risk disclosures are required for all debt instruments as well as investments in
mutual funds, external investment pools and other pooled investments that do not meet the
defmition of a "2a-7 like" pool. Additionally, GASB Statement No. 40 requires that the
interest rate be disclosed using one of five approved methods. The five methods are:
Segmented time distribution, specific identification, weighted average maturity (WAM),
duration, and simulation model. Different methods may be presented for different types of
investments.

The City does not have a formal policy regarding the interest rate risk. It is the City's
intention to make investments to provide sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as they
become due. For City funds, SBA meets the 2a-7 pool requirements; thus, no interest rate
disclosures are necessary. The City's uses the weighted average maturity method (WAM)
for its 1-3 Year High quality Fixed Income Bond which results in a Duration of 1.33 and a
WAMof1.43.
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

The General Employees Pension Plan has no investments that are subject to interest rate
risk. The Plan's investments are all mutual funds not subject to interest rate risk; therefore,
no specific interest rate risk policy exists.

As a means of limiting its exposure to interest rate risk, the Police Officers and Firefighters
Pension Plan diversifies its investments by security type and institution, and limits holdings
in anyone type of investment with anyone issuer with various durations of maturities.
Neither State law nor the Police Officers and Firefighters Pension Plan's investment policy
limits maturity term on fixed income holdings. Information about the sensitivity of the fair
values of the Plan's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the Police Officers and Firefighters Pension
Plan's investments by maturity at September 30,2008.

Police Officers and Firefighters Pension Plan:

Investment Maturities (In Years)
Fair Less More

Investment Type Value Than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 Than 10

U.S. treasuries $ 2,309,203 $ 515,609 $1,295,505 $ 380,052 $ 118,037
U.S. agencies 10,448,970 1,625,905 4,478,612 4,344,453
Corporate bonds 5,122,907 527,312 971,596 1,914,130 1,709,869

$17,881,080 $1,042,921 $3,893,006 $6,772,794 $6,172,359

The General Management Employees Pension Plan's investments are all mutual funds not
subject to interest rate risk; therefore, no specific interest rate risk policy exists.

Risks and Uncertainties

The three Pension Trust Plans can have investments in a combination of stocks, bonds,
government securities and other investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to
various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risk. Due to the level of risk associated
with certain investment securities and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value
of investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term
would materially affect balances and the amounts reported in the statement of plan net assets
and the statement of changes in plan net assets. The Plans, through each individual plan's
investment advisors, monitors the plan's investments and the risks associated therewith on a
regular basis, which minimizes these risks.
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NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of September 30, 2008 for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds
in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General Water Sewer Stormwater Nonmajor Total
Receivables:

Billed $1,795,660 $4,624,071 $ 824,185 $ 153,415 $ - $ 7,397,331
Unbilled 1,195,286 1,483.314 481,509 118,769 3,278,878
Franchise and utility 635,488 635,488
Intergovernmental 292,204 380,821 367,662 1,040,687
Grants 699,127 3,842,175 4,541,302

Other 2,050,860 33,368 358,000 2,442,228

Property taxes 808,515 271,677 1,080,192

Gross receivables 6,485,809 6,432,957 2,657,319 272,184 4,567,837 20,416,106
Less allowance for uncollectibles 67,966 178,151 246,117

Net total receivables $6,485,809 $6,364,991 $2,479,168 $ 272,184 34,567,837 $20,169,989

Governmental funds defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been
received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, unearned revenue and deferred
revenue reported in the governmental funds was as follows:

Unavailable Unearned

Advance revenues - business tax receipts
CST revenues not yet earned
Performance bonds - forfeits

Grant revenues not yet earned

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

$ - $ 824,107
197,875
132,177
330,137

$ 660,189 $ 824,107

Capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2008 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 4,295,359 $ - $ . $ 4,295,359
Construction in progress 31,104,627 3,710,154 34,814,781

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 35,399,986 3,710,154 39,110,140

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 29,170,583 (209,819) 28,960,764
Improvements other than buildings 13,106,764 l,146,131 14,252,895
Infrastructure 5,559,430 5,559,430
Capital lease equipment 4,708,111 576,054 5,284,165
Furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment 26,846,643 460,109 (1,345,922) 25,960,830

Total capital assets being depreciated 79,391,531 2,182,294 (l ,555,741) 80,018,084
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Capital lease equipment
Furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

(17,322,278) (1,267,513) 158,683 (18,431,108)
(5,895,554) (588,561) (6,484,115)
(1,945,197) (207,107) (2,152,304)
(1,300,564) (609,259) (1,909,823)

(22,969,091) (914,094) 1,314,032 (22,569,153)

(49,432,684) (3,586,534) 1,472,715 (51,546,503)

29,958,847 (1,404,240) (83,026) 28,471,581

$ 65,358,833 $ 2,305,914 $ (83,026) $ 67,581,721

109,753,984 75,102,388 (1,200) 184,&55,172
1,855,797 105,020 1,960,817

11,231,286 255,864 (477,211) 11,009,939
122,841,067 75,463,272 (478,411) 197,825,928

Business-type activities
Capita! assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and utility plant
Capital lease equipment
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

$ 5,872,367 $ - $ - $
74,014,821 13,886,621 (74,733,126)

79,887,188 13,886,621 (74,733,126)

5,872,367
13,168,316

19,040,683

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and utility plant
Capital lease equipment
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

(44,194,518)
(599,169)

(9,942,190)

(54,735,877)

68,105,190

$ 147,992,378

(3,460,004) 1,213
(284,359)
(311,857) 463,620

(4,056,220) u_464,833

71,407,052 (13,578)

$85,293,671 $ (74,746,704)

(47,653,309)
(883,528)

(9,790,427)

(58,327,264)

139,498,664

$ 158,539,347

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Library
Parks and recreation
Public works services

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Stonnwater

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Commitments

In August 2002, the City issued $66,385,000 of Florida Municipal Loan Council, Series
2002B Bonds for the expansion and modernization of its Norwood Water Treatment Plant and
Well Fields. The engineering and design phase of the project was started immediately after
the bond issuance, and was completed in February 2004. The Norwood Water Treatment
Plant Expansion Phase I is approximately 99 percent complete. The new membrane system
has not reached substantial completion and has been in limited operation and testing since
August 2007. The project was put into service during fiscal year 2008. After the expansion,
the City of North Miami Beach will be the first water supplier in Miami-Dade County to
utilize an alternative water supply and membrane filtration technology, with water production
capacity of 32 million gallons per day. Outstanding obligations at fiscal year end totaled
approximately $4 million. During the current fiscal year, approximately $59.3 million was
reclassified from construction in progress to capital assets. During the current fiscal year, the
City capitalized interest in the amount of $152,000 relating to the above construcbon project.
The inception to date of capitalized interest totals $2,318,000. The inception to date
capitalized labor total is $1,149,000.

In December 2003, various City transportation projects were financed through the issuance of
$7,765,000 of Florida Municipal Loan Council, Series 2003B Bonds. The debt service on
these bonds will be paid from the City's share of the newly passed Miami-Dade County
Transit Surtax. Of the approximate $475,000 unreserved fund balance, approximately
$37,000 represents outstanding encumbrances, which leaves approximately $438,000 to be
expended.

NOTE 6. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the Enterprise Funds as of September 30, 2008 are
as follows:

Water escrow funds held by agent
Water escrow funds held by lessor
Sewer escrow funds held by lessor
Stormwater escrow funds held by agent
Water fireflow
Sewer inplant

Total enterprise fund restricted assets
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$102,580
1,965
2,785
2,558

795,649
84,297

$ 989,834
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(Continued)

NOTE 7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund

Total General Fund

LETF US Treasury Fund
LETF US Treasury Fund
LETF US Treasury Fund
LETF US Treasury Fund
LETF US Treasury Fund
LETF US Treasury Fund
LETF US Treasury Fund

Total LETF Fund

Payable Fund

FEMA Disaster 1345 DR FL
FRDAP Grants
FRDAP - Victory Pool
Panzou Project - Grant # 2
Panzou Project - Grant # 3
panzou Grant - Federal
UASIGrant
Highland Village Sewer Improvement
200313 Bonds
Water Fund
200013 Bonds Debt Service Fund
IvIDC Building Better Communities GOB Program
Sewer Fund

North Miami Beach Weed & Seed
WAY Weed & Seed Strategy
Great Grant
Facility Security & Management
CISlFoot Patrol
Gang Grant Foot Patrol
Gang Reduction Grant -FY2006-07

FY08
Amount

$ 24,611 Provide temporary funding
60,007 Provide temporary funding

200,000 Provide temporary funding
32,153 Provide temporary funding
5,065 Provide temporary funding

83,404 Provide temporary funding
9,669 Provide temporary funding

274,672 Provide temporary funding
50,893 Provide temporary funding

2,045,287 Provide temporary funding
353,306 Provide tempordI)' f\Ulding

2,184,166 Provide temporary funding
341,000 Provide temporary funding

5,664,235

35,794 Provide temporary funding
7,575 Provide temporary funding

373 Provide temporary funding
22,478 Provide temporary funding

5,178 Provide temporary funding
2,537 Provide temporary funding

23,347 Provide temporary funding

97,282

Fireflow Fund Stormwater hnprovement Funds
Community Redevelopment Agen' Hanford Blvd. Roadway Imp.- Phase IV

Tota! due to/from other funds

Interfund transfers:

Transfers In

8,673 Provide temporary funding
991,964 Provide temporary funding

$6,762,154

General
Fund

Non-Major

Governmental
Funds Purpose

250,000
765,950

2,51~.z2§.1

Transfers out:
General fund
Water utility
Sewer utility
Storrnwater utility
Nonmajor governmental funds

Total transfers out

$ - $ 1,499,011
3,629,697
1,279,975

137,390
595,045

~~~,10~ $
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$1,499,011 Grant match funding
3,629,697 Contributed and supplemental funding
1,279,975 Contributed and supplemental funding

387,390 Contributed and supplemental funding
1,360,995 Grant match and supplemental funding

$8,157,068
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(Continued)

NOTE 8. SHORT TERM DEBT INSTRUMENTS AND LIQUIDITY

The City annually obtains a taxable line of credit to have cash funds available for unanticipated
hurricane losses and for general operating expenses while awaiting receipt of various revenues.
The bulk ofthe City's ad valorem taxes are received from the County in December each year.

In fiscal year 2008, the City's obtained a short term taxable line of credit balance of $2.5 million.
On December 4, 2007, the City drew down $150,000 of the available line of credit. This amount
of the line of credit remained outstanding at year end.

Beginning
Balance

Ending
Additions Reductions Balance

Governmental activities:
Short-tenn taxable line of credit

Total

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds Payable

1. Changes in Bonds Payable

$ - $ 150,000 .:;...$ - $150,000

,,;,.,$~~~- L 150,00,Q ~ - $150,000

The following is a summary of bond transactions for the City for the year ended
September 30, 2008:

Balance, September 30,2007
Bonds issued
Bonds retired

Balance, September 30, 2008
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$ 106,995,000

(1,765,000)

$105,230,~0_0



CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bondr; Payable (Continued)

2. Bonds Authorized and Outstanding

Long-term debt at September 30,2008 consists of the following individual issues:

Capital Improvements Bonds:
$1,950,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 1997 Series serial bonds; secured

by pledge of revenues from municipal revenue sharing program; due in annual installments
of$140,000 to $395,000 through October 1,2012; interest at 4.85%.

$1,000,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, 1998 Series serial bonds; secured by
pledge of revenues from municipal revenue sharing program; due in annual installments of
$50,000 to $425,000 through October 1,2013; interest at 4.48%.

$300,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2000 A Series Capital Appreciation and term
bonds; secured by municipal bond insurance; due in annual installments of$14,465 to
$15,304 through April I, 2010; interest at 4.3% to 6.0%.

$17,305,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2000 B Series Capital Appreciation and term

bonds; secured by municipal bond insurance; due in annual installments of $270,000 to
$1,325,000 from November 1,2001 to November 1, 2030; interest at 4.25% to 5.375%.

$11,510,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2002 A Series Capital Appreciation and
term bonds; secured by municipal bond insurance; due in annual installments of $425,000 to
$870,000 from May 1,2003 to May 1, 2024; interest at 3.25% to 5.50%.

$7,765,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2003 B Series Capital Appreciation and
term bonds; secured by pledge of revenue from Charter County Transit System surtax
proceeds; due in annual installments of$415,000 to $660,000 from December 1, 2004 to
December 1,2019; interest at 2% to 5.25%.

$225,577 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2005 C Series Revenue Refunding Serial
bond; secured by municipal bond insurance; due in annual installments of$1,677 to $25,996
from April 1, 2006 to April 1, 2020; interest at 3% to 4.125%.

Total capital improvement bonds

Revenue Bonds:
Water Utility System:

$6,855,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2000 A Series Capital Appreciation and term

bonds/secured by municipal bond insurance; due in annual installments of$330,535 to
$349,696 from April 1, 2004 to April 1, 2010; interest at 4.3% to 6.0%

$66,385,000 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2002 B Series Water Utilities
Appreciation and term bonds; secured by municipal bond insurance; due in annual
installments of$280,000 to $5,085,000 beginning February 1, 2005 to August 1, 2032;
interest at 3.0% to 5.375%.

$5,154,423 Florida Municipal Loan Council, 2005 C Series Revenue Refunding Serial
bond Secured by municipal bond insurance; due in annual installments of $38,323 to
$594,004 from April 1,2006 to April 1,2020; interest at 3.0% to 4.125%

Total revenue bonds

Total bonds payable
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$ 845,000

625,000

29,769

15,960,000

9,845,000

6,180,000

218,239

33,703,008

680,231

65,860,000

4,986,761

71,526,992

$105,230,000
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERJ.VI DEBT (Continued)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

Pledged Revenues

For all of the water revenue bonds noted above, the pledged revenues consist of the charges for
services to the customers of the water utility system. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2008, debt service of approximately $4 million is only 16.6% of the $24,166,000 pledged
revenues of the debt which matures in 2032.

For the capital improvement bonds noted above, the City issues debt that is secured by a pledge
of specific revenues. The total pledged revenues to repay the principal and interest on the debt as
of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

State Revenue Sharing
• 1997 & 1998 Series serial bonds debt service of approximately $262,770 is only 40.5% of

the $642,052 of pledged revenues.
Ad-Valorem
• 2000B and 2002A Series debt service of approximately $2,024,293 is only 11.5% of the

$17,620,914 of pledged revenues.
One-half Percentage of Sales Tax
• 2003B Series debt service of approximately $686,805 is only 52.5% of the $1,307,355 of

pledged revenues.

3. Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements to maturity for each series of bonds at September 30, 2008 are
as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Capital ImprovementBonds:

1997 Series:
2009 $ 140,000 $ 40,983 $ 180,983
2010 150,000 34,193 184,193
2011 160.000 26,918 186.918
2012 395,000 19,157 414,157

$ 845,000 $ 121,251 $ 966.251

Capital Improvements Bonds:
1998 Series:

2009 $ 50,000 $ 28,000 $ 78.000
2010 50,000 25,760 75,760
2011 50,000 23,520 73,520
2012 50,000 21,280 71.280
2013 425,000 19,040 444,040

$ 625,000 $ 117,600 $ 742,600

1,488 $ 15.953
766 )0,070

2,254 ;;...$_ ....3,.;;;;2.,;,;,;02.;;.,3

Florida Municipal Loan Council (Water and Capital):
2000 A Series:

Capital:
2009
2010

Subtotal Capital

Water revenue:
2009
2010

Subtotal Water Revenue
Total 2000A Series
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$ 14,465 $
15,304

$ 29,769 $.

$ 330,535 $

349,696

680,231
$ 710,000 $

34.012 $

17,484
51,496

53,750 $

364,547
367,180

731,727
763,750
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

3. Debt Service Requirements (Continued)

Florida Municipal Loan Council (Capital):
2000 B Series:

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2031

Principal Interest Total

$ 270,000 $ 846,036 $ 1,116,036
290,000 832,943 1,122,943
315,000 818,648 1,133,648
345,000 802,800 1,147,800
370,000 785,276 1,155,276

2,375,000 3,562,711 5,937,711
3,440,000 2,783,229 6,108,550
4,820,000 1,685,600 6,505,600
3,735,000 309,734 4,044,734

$1.5,960,000 $1~,126,977 LJ8,386,977

Florida Municipal Loan COWlcil (Capital):
2002 A Series:

2009 $ 425,000 $ 500,144 $ 925,144
2010 435,000 483,144 918,144
2011 455,000 465,744 920,744
2012 470,000 446,976 916,976
2013 495,000 423,476 918,476
2014-2018 2,920,000 1,676,828 4,596,828
2019-2023 3,775,000 805,650 4,580,650
2024 870,000 43,500 913,500

$ 9,845,000 $ 4,845,462 $ 14,690,462

Florida Municipal Loan Council (Water):
2002 B Series:

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2032

$ 280,000 $ 3,244,221 $ 3,524,221
505,000 3,234,701 3,739,701

1,445,000 3,216,521 4,661,521
1,505,000 3,163,056 4,668,056
1,565,000 3,102,856 4,667,856
8,980,000 14,374,756 23,354,756

13,670,000 11,660,938 25,330,938
18,980,000 7,673,250 26,653,250
18,930,000 2,424,250 21,354,250

$ 65,8~0,0.2Q $52,094,549 $ 117,954,549
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(Continued)

NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bonds Payable (Continued)

3. Debt Service Requirements (Continued)

Principal Interest Total
Florida Municipal Loan Council (Capital):

2003 B Series:
2009 $ 415,000 $ 272,163 $ 687,163
2010 425,000 261,027 686,027
2011 440,000 248,475 688,475
2012 450,000 234,844 684,844
2013 465,000 218,512 683,512
2014-2018 2,695,000 706,783 3,40l,783
2019-2020 1,290,000 68,513 1,358,513

$ 6,180,000 $ 2,010,317 $ 8,190,317

Florida Municipal Loan Council (Water & Capital):
2005 C Series:

Capital:
2009 $ 1,677 $ 9,250 $ 10,927
2010 1,677 9,196 10,873
2011 17,820 9,137 26,957
2012 18,239 8,558 26,797
2013 18,868 7,942 26,810
2014-2018 109,014 26,032 135,046

2019-2020 50,944 3,143 54,087

Subtotal Capital 218,239 73,258 291,497

Water Revenue:
2009 38,323 211,369 249,692
2010 38,323 210,123 248,446
2011 407,180 208,782 615,962
2012 416,761 195,548 612,309
2013 431,132 181,483 612,615
2014-2018 2,490,986 594,843 3,085,829
2019-2020 1,164,056 71,807 1,235,863

Subtotal Water Revenue 4,986,761 1,673,954 6,660,715

Total2005C Series $ 5,2~5,0.QQ, $ 1,747,213 $ 6,~~'p

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures.
The City is in compliance, in all material respects, with significant covenants and restrictions.
Interest and bond redemption payments have been made timely.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Bondt; Payable (Continued)

3. Debt Service Requirements (Continued)

Governmental Activities

Defeasance ofLong-Term Debt

During the fiscal year 2005, the City issued $225,577 in Revenue Refunding Serial
Bonds - Series 2005C with interest rates ranging from 3% to 4.125%. The proceeds
were used to advance refund a portion of the Capital Appreciation and Term Bonds
- Series 2000A in the amount of$207,128. The net proceeds of $228,269 (including
premium and other underwriting and other issuance costs) were used to purchase
U.S. Government Securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust
with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the Capital
Appreciation and Term Bonds - Series 2000A. As a result, a portion of the bonds
are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed
from the Statement ofNet Assets. The advance refunding resulted in an accounting
loss of$28,480. The loss was deemed immaterial and was expensed during the year.
The transaction also resulted in an economic gain of $7,579 and a reduction of
$9,780 in future debt service payments.

Business-type

Defeasance ofLong-Term Debt

During the fiscal year 2005, the City issued $5,154,423 in Revenue Refunding Serial
Bonds - Series 2005C with interest rates ranging from 3% to 4.125%. The proceeds
were used t6 advance refund a portion of the Capital Appreciation and Term Bonds
- Series 2000A in the amount of $4,732,872. The net proceeds of $5,444,217
(including premium and other underwriting and other issuance costs) were used to
purchase U.S. Government Securities. Those securities were deposited in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments
on the Capital Appreciation and Term Bonds - Series 2000A. As a result, a portion
of the bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been
removed from the Statement of Net Assets. The advance refunding resulted in an
accounting loss of $483,075. This accounting loss is being amortized over the
remaining life of the old bond issue in accordance with GASB Statement 23. The
transaction also resulted in an economic gain of $173,176 and a reduction of
$223,483 in future debt service payments.
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Notes Payable

Florida Local Government Finance Commission Pooled Commercial Paper Loan Program:

Draw A-I
In August 1996, the City obtained financing of $2,400,000 through a commercial paper loan
program to assist in financing certain stormwater projects. During 1998, the City refmanced
the loan and increased its outstanding obligation by $120,000. The refinancing extended the
maturity of the loan by two years. In September 2003, the City again refinanced the loan with
a balance of $2,080,000 and extended the maturity of the loan by four years. In September of
2007, the City refmanced the balloon payment of$1,880,000 that came due and gain extended
the maturity ofthe loan by four years.

Draw A-2
In September 1998, the City obtained additional commercial paper loan program financing of
$720,000 from the same agency. The additional funds will also be used to [mance certain
stormwater projects. In September 2002, the City refinanced the loan and increased its
outstanding obligation by $570,000. The refinancing extended the maturity of the loan by two
years. In September 2006, the City again refmanced the outstanding balance of $370,000 and
extended the maturity of the loan by four and one half years.

Draw A-3
In August 1999, the City obtained financing of $850,000 from the same agency to assist in
fmancing a portion of the costs and expenses to various capital improvements projects. In
December 2003, the City refmanced the outstanding loan balance of $625,000 and extended
the maturity period by four years. In November 2007, the balloon payment of $250,000
became due and was paid off.

The interest rate on the three loans varies (blended market rates) and is payable monthly. The
actual interest rate as of September 30, 2008 was 2.44436%. The loans are collateralized by
legally available non-aU' valorem revenues.

Principal requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2009 $ - $ 104,000 $ 104,000
2010 104,000 104,000
2011 214,000 214,000
2012 1,672,000 1,672,000

$ - $ 2,094,000 $2,094,000
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NOTE 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Master Leases

The City has entered into master lease purchase agreements each year from the period August
1989 to September 2007. During 2008, the City did not enter into any new lease purchase
agreements.

Obligations created under these leases are to be repaid from on hand and legally available
funds from sources other than ad va1m-em taxes. The agreements make provision for
tennination of governmental non-appropriations, such that the City will not be obligated to
make any further lease payments beyond the year in which the City does not appropriate
sufficient funds to continue making payments required under the leases.

The capital assets acquired under these leases remain collateral for repayment of outstanding
principal obligations.

The assets acquired through capita11eases are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets:
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated deprecation

$ 5,284,165 $
(1,909,823)

$ 3,374,342 $

1,960,817 $7,244,982
(883,528) (2,793,351)

1,077,289 $4,451,631

The information provided is as of October 1, 2002 and prior information is not available.

Future minimum lease payments and the present value of net minimum lease payments at
September 30, 2008 are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Fiscal year ending September 30:

2009 $ 757,488 $ 241,442 $ 998,930
2010 459,680 80,033 539,713
2011 190.729 23,677 214,406

Total minimum lease payments 1,407,897 345,152 1,753,049
Less amount representing interest (63,035) (11,399) (74,434)

Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 1,344,862 $ 333,753 $1,678,615

-57-



CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 9. LONG-TERl\f DEBT (Continued)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2008 was as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Bala~f:. One Year

Governmental activities:
Bonds and notes payable:

General obligation and term bonds $ 34,958,521 $ - $ (1 ,255,513) $33,703,008 $1,316,]42
Notes payable 250,000 (250,000)
Notes payable CRA - Taxable 1,000,000 1,000,000 277,776
Notes payable CRA - Nontaxable 3,000,000 3,000,000 166,668

Total bonds and notes payable 35,208,521 4,000,000 (1,505,513) 37,703,008 1,760,586
Master leases 2,352,885 (944,988) 1,407,897 757,488
Estimated claims 2,005,000 644,000 (541,000) 2,108,000 631,000
Compensated absences 3,671,597 3,281,911 (3,662,102) 3,291,406 1,399,964

Governmental activities
long-term liabilities ~~,23~03 $7,922z211 H6,653,603) $ 44,51 0,3 U. $4,549,038

Business-type activities:
Notes payable $ 2,198,000 $ - $ (104,000) $ 2,094,000 $ 104,000
Revenue bonds 72,036,479 (509,487) 71,526,992 648,858
Premium on revenue bonds 447,880 (23,714) 424,166
Investment premium 1,826 (1,826)

Total bonds and notes payable 74,684,185 (639,027) 74,045,158 752,858
Master leases 769,739 (424,587) 345,152 241,442
Compensated absences 763,466 569,848 (686,541) 646,773 198,227

Business-type activities
long-term liabilities $76,217,390 $ 569,848 $(1.,750,155) $75,037,083 $1,192,527

NOTE 10. OTHER INFORMATION

a. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or damage to and destruction
of assets, errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial
insurance. The City established a risk management program for workers' compensation and
general liabilities. Premiums are paid into the self-insurance funds, which are included in the
general fund. Florida law limits the liability in each instance not to exceed $200,000.
Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated.
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NOTE 10. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

a. Risk Management (Continued)

Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported
(IBNR). Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim
settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other economic and social
factors. There were no reductions in insurance coverages from coverages in the prior year and
there was one settlement that exceeded insurance coverage within the last three fiscal years.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two fiscal years are as follows:

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year
Incurred claims (including IBNRs)
Claim payments

Unpaid claims, end of fiscal year

$2,005,000
644,000

(541,000)

.'p,108,0.QQ.

$2,083,000
347,000

(425,000)

!2,005,~

Based upon the City Attomey's evaluation of pending cases, the estimated liability to which
the City might be exposed ranges from $750,000 to $1.2 million. The self insurance funds,
which are included in the general fund, have cash available of approximately $800,000 at
September 30, 2008 and all non-self insurance cases would be paid from the City's general
fund unreserved fund balance.

h. Litigation

The City is the defendant in several lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of
management and counsel, the ultimate outcome of such matters will not have a material
adverse effect upon the fmancial condition of the City.

c. Post Employment Benefits

The City offers continuation of health and life insurance benefits to employees upon
retirement. There are 47 retirees that participate in the City's health insurance program. The
cost for health insurance is paid by the retiree at a rate of $369-$721 per month for single
coverage, $799-$1,417 per month for couple and $1033-$2,084 per month for family
coverage, depending on plan selected. Nine of the 47 retirees received health insurance paid
entirely by the City. Ten retirees received health insurance paid partially by the City. The
City does not contribute to the remaining 29 retirees' health insurance premiums.

Expenditures for post retirement dental care and life insurance benefits for retirees were
approximately $14,859 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. There are 56 retirees
that participate in the City's dental program. Eight of the 56 are paid entirely by the City; nine
retirees received dental insurance paid partially by the City. The City does not contribute to
the remaining 39 retirees. The cost of life insurance for ]97 retirees is paid for by the City at a
rate of .36 per $1,000 of insurance. Retirees receive $10,000 to $30,000 of life insurance
coverage. This will reflect that the City no longer subsidizes the majority of retiree dental
coverage whereas during the previous year, the City subsidized a portion of the coverage.
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NOTE 10. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

d. Contingent Liabilities

Federal and State programs in which the City participates were audited in accordance with the
provisions of the Single Audit Act, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A­
133, and the Florida Statutes. Pursuant to those provisions, financial assistance programs
were tested for compliance with applicable grant requirements. Grantor agencies may subject
grant programs to additional compliance tests, which could result in disallowed expenditures.
In the opinion of management, future disallowances, if any, of grant program expenditures
would be immaterial.

e. Other

Upon completion of the Water Utility Plant expansion, the City and one of its contractors are
in disagreement with the final payment on the contract. The parties are presently in
negotiation but no settlement has been achieved. An estimate of the potential liability has
been recorded by the City. At the present time, the City is unable to estimate a final amount
due to the contractor.

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The following brief descriptions of the Retirement Plans are provided for general information
purposes only. Participants should refer to the Plan documents for more complete information.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis ofAccounting

Public Employee Retirement Systems (PERS) financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Employee and employer contributions are recognized as
revenues in the period in which employee services are performed. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

New Accounting Standard

The City has adopted Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 50,
"Pension Disclosures," which amends GASB Statements No. 25, "Financial Reporting for
Defined Benefit Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans," and No. 27,
"Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers." GASB 50
requires disclosure in the notes to the financial statements of pension plans and celiain
employer governments, as to the current funded status of the Plan and other actuarial
information which had previously been provided as required supplementary information.
The adoption of GASB 50 had an impact on the presentation of the notes to the fmancial
statements but no impact on net assets. The current funded status and the funding progress
schedules for the City's defined benefit pension plans use the entry age actuarial cost
method. This method of presentation serves as a surrogate for the funded status and
funding progress of the plans.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments of the pension trust funds are reported at fair value. Securities traded 011 a
national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price. Net appreciation in fair value
of investments includes realized and unrealized gains and losses.

Interest and dividends are reported as investment earnings. As of September 30, 2008, no
single investment exceeded 5% of total plan net assets.

2. Plan Description

The City, as a single employer, maintains the following three public employee retirement
systems defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all full-time employees and
certain former City firemen: the Retirement Plan for General Employees of the City of North
Miami Beach, the Retirement Plan for Police Officers and Firefighters of the City of North
Miami Beach and the Retirement Plan and Trust for General Management Employees of the
City of North Miami Beach. These Plans are recorded as Pension Trust Funds. In accordance
with various provisions of State statutes and the City Charter, the City is obligated to fund the
liabilities of the Plans based upon actuarial valuations performed at least every two years.

The latest actuarial valuations for the Retirement Plan for the General Employees, the
Retirement Plan for the Police Officers and Firefighters and for the Retirement Plan and Trust
for General Management Employees are as of October 1, 2007.

Police General
Officers and Management

General Firefighters Employees

Covered payroll (in thousands) 9,609 .;..$=_2..,l,,4=2..;.8

Numbers ofmembers included in Plan:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving

benefits and terminated employees entitled to
benefits but not yet receiving them

Current employees:
Vested
Non-vested

Total

Retirement Plan for General Employees

205

253
64

522

121

45
49

215

5

33
2

40

The benefit provisions and all other requirements of the Retirement Plan for General
Employees are established by City Ordinance and are summarized as follows:

Vesting
Benefits are fully vested after 6 years of credited service.

-61-



CITY OF NORTH M1AMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. El.V1PLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

2. Plan Description (Continued)

Retirement Plan for General Employees (Continued)

Eligibilityfor Retirement
Attainment of age 62 or age 55 with 20 years of service.

Annual Retirement Benefit
Normal retirement benefits are based upon 3.0% of "final monthly compensation", as
defined by the pension plan, times years of credited service.

Other Benefits
The Plan also provides for optional retirement benefits, early retirement, deferred retirement,
deferred retirement option program (DROP) disability retirement and death benefits.

Employee Contributions
Employees contribute 7% of their basic annual compensation beginning after two years of
service. If any employee leaves covered employment before six years of credited service,
accumulated employee contributions plus interest are refunded to the employee.

City Contributions
City contributions are based upon actuarially determined amounts, which together with
employee contributions and fund earnings, are sufficient to fund the plan.

Funding Policy
The annual required contributions for the Plan for the current year were determined as part
of the October 1,2007 actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The
aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify and separately amortized unfunded
actuarial liabilities. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 25, a schedule of funding
progress is not required, however, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 50, a schedule
offunding progress is required using the entry age normal cost method.

The General Employees Retirement System does not issue separate stand-alone fmaneial
statements; therefore, included below is the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and the
Statement ofChanges in Fiduciary Net Assets as ofand for the year ended September 30, 2008.

General Employees Retirement System Trust Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

September 30, 2008

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables

Total assets

Liabilities

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits
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107,037
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMJ.>LOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

2. Plan Description (Continued)

Retirement Plan for General Employees (Continued)

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Year Ended September 30, 2008

Additions:
Contributions
Investment income (loss), net

Total additions

Deductions:
Pension benefits
Refunds
Other

Total deductions

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

Retirement Plan for Police Officers and Firefighters

$ 3,387,875
_ (7,677,326)

(4,289,451)

2,723,937
116,040
119,945

2,959,922

(7,249,373)
55,479,766

$48,230,393

The benefit provisions and all other requirements of the Retirement Plan for Police Officers
and Firefighters are established by City Ordinance and are summarized as follows:

Vesting
Benefits are fully vested after ten years of credited service.

Eligibility for Retirement
Nonnal retirement is the earlier of age 52 or 22 years of service for fIrefighters and the
earlier of age 52 or 20 years of credited service for police officers.

Annual Retirement Benefit
Normal retirement benefits are based upon 3.3% for fIrefighters and 3% for police officers
of «final monthly compensation", as defined by the pension plan, times years of credited
service.

Other Benefits
The Plan also provides for optional retirement benefits, early retirement, deferred
retirement, deterred retirement option program (DROP) disability retirement and death
benefits.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

2. Plan Description (Continued)

Retirement Plan for Police Officers and Firefighters (Continued)

Employee Contributions
10.5% and 6% of annual compensation for police officers and firefighters, respectively.

City Contributions
City contributions are based upon actuarially determined amounts, which together with
employee, state and county contributions and fund earnings are sufficient to fund the Plan.

Funding Policy
The annual required contributions for the Plan for the current year were determined as part
of the October 1, 2007 actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The
aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify and separately amortized unfunded
actuarial liabilities. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 25, a schedule of funding
progress is not required, however, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 50, a schedule
of funding progress is required using the entry age normal cost method.

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Section 185 and Section 175, the State of Florida makes
contributions to fund police and firefighter benefits. These State contributions were
recognized as revenue and expenditures by the City.

During fiscal year 2008, the amounts were $273,052 and $486,244 for police and
fIrefighters, respectively.

The Police Officers and Firefighters Retirement System does not issue separate stand-alone
financial statements; therefore, included below is the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and
the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets as of and for the year ended September 30,
2008.

Police Officers and Firefighters Retirement System Trust Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

September 30,2008

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables

Total assets

Liabilities

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

-64-

$ 2,224
51,611,947

425,957

52,040,128
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

2. Plan Description (Continued)

Retirement Plan for Police Officers and Firefighters (Continued)

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Year Ended September 30, 2008

Additions:
Contributions
Investment income (loss), net

Total additions

Deductions:
Pension benefits
Refunds
Other

Total deductions

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

Retirement Plan and Trust for General Management Employees

$ 6,276,759
~}65,926)

(2,889,167)

4,625,597
30,934

166,781

4,823,312

(7,712,479)
59,690,662

$51,978,183

The benefit provisions and all other requirements of the Retirement Plan and Trust for General
Management Employees are established by City ordinance and are summarized as follows:

Vesting
Benefits are fully vested after six years ofcredited service.

Eligibilityfor Retirement
Nanna! retirement is the attainment of a combined age and years of service totaling 75, but
not earlier than age 55, or the attainment ofage 62 with six years of service.

Annual RetirementBenefit
Nonnal retirement benefits arc based upon 3% of"average fmal compensation", as defined
by the pension plan, times years ofcredited service.

Other Benefits
The Plan also provides for optional retirement benefits, early retirement, deferred
retirement, deferred retirement option program (DROP) and death benefits.

Employee Contributions
Management personnel contribute 8% of their basic annual compensation.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

2. Plan Description (Continued)

Retirement Plan and Trust for General Management Employees (Continued)

City Contributions
City contributions are based upon actuarially determined amounts, which together with
employee and fund earnings are sufficient to fund the Plan.

Funding Policy
The annual required contributions for the Plan for the current year were detennined as part
of the October 1, 2007 actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The
aggregate actuarial cost method does not identify and separately amortized unfunded
actuarial liabilities. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 25, a schedule of funding
progress is not required, however, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 50, a schedule
of funding progress is required using the entry age nonnal cost method.

The General Management Retirement System does not issue separate stand-alone financial
statements; therefore, included below is the Statement ofFiduciary Net Assets and the Statement
ofChanges in Fiduciary Net Assets as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008.

General Management Retirement System Trust Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

September 30, 2008

Assets:
Investments

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Year Ended September 30, 2008

Additions:
Contributions
Investment income (loss), net

Total additions

Deductions:
Pension benefits
Refunds
Other

Total deductions

Change in net assets
Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending
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$9,813,971

!2J813,971

$1,015,571
(1,391,889)

(376,318)

429,313
32,147
18,837

480,297

(856,615)
10,670,586

$9,813,971



CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset

General Employees

The annual pension cost and net pension asset (in thousands) for the current year was as
follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Increase in net pension asset

Net pension asset, beginning afyear

Net pension asset, end ofyear

$2,272
(33)
24

2,263

2,33~

70
392

$ 462

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the
October 1, 2007 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 8.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b)
projected salary increases of 5.5% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation
component 00.5%.

The assumptions include post-retirement benefit increases for cost of living adjustment of
2.25% per year. The actuarial value of assets was determined using smoothed market
value. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level percent
of pay closed basis. The remaining amortization period was 30 years

Three-Year Trend Information
In Thousands

Annual Percentage
Pension of APC

Fiscal Year Ended Cost CAPe) Contributed

Net
Pension
Asset

9/30/2006
9/30/2007
9/30/2008

$
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2,107
2,263

102%
101%
103%

$ 365
391
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the Plan as of October 1,2007, is as follows (in thousands):

Actuarial UAALasa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date W ill (b-a) (a+b) Ul ((b-ahc)

October 1, 2007* $ 53,576 $ 67,210 $ 13,634 79.7% $ 13,112 104.0%

*Actuarial accrued liability is calculated using the entry age normal cost method.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
(RSI) following the notes to the basic fmancial statements, presents trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return*
Projected salary increases*
Cost of living adjustments

*Inc1udes inflation at 3.5%.
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CITY OF NORTH MIA-LVII BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIvIENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETmEMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued)

Police and Firefighters

The annual pension cost and net pension asset (in thousands) for the current year was as
follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension asset
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Increase in net pension asset
Net pension asset, beginning of year

Net pension asset, end of year

$4,138
(40)
28

4,126
4,338

212
502

$ 714

The annual required contribution for the current year was detennined as part of the
October 1,2007 actuarial valuation using the entry age nonnal actuarial cost method. The
actuarial assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases varies by service. Both (a) and (b) included an
inflation component of 4%. The assumptions include post-retirement benefit increases for
the cost of living adjustment of 2.5% per year compounded. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using the five year smoothed market method. The unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized using the level percent of pay. The remaining
amortization period range from 13 to 30 years.

Three-Year Trend Information
In Thousands

Annual Percentage
Pension ofAPC

Fiscal Year Ended Cost CAPe) Contributed

Net
Pension
Asset

9/30/2006
9/30/2007
9/30/2008

$ 3,305
3,610
4,126

101%
101%
105%

$ 456
502
714

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status ofthe Plan as of October 1,2007 is as follows (in thousands):

Actuarial UAALasa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (VAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date W (Ill (b-a) (a+b) {g} «(b-ahc)

October 1,2007* $ 57,040 $ 95,564 $ 38,524 59.7% $ 9,609 400.9%
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CITY OF NORTH MIAl\fi BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued)

Police and Firefighters (Continued)

*Actuarial accrued liability is calculated using the entry age normal cost method.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
(RSI) following the notes to the basic financial statements, presents trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return*
Projected salary increases*
Cost of living adjustments

Management Employees

October 1, 2007
Entry age normal
Level percent of pay
Police: Remaining amortization periods range

from 12 to 30 years
Fire: Amortization period is based on the average

future lifetime of the remaining retirees
5 year smoothed market

8.00%
Varies by service
2.5% per year, compounded

On January 7, 2003, the City Council approved the creation of the General Management
Employees Pension Plan. The Plan includes all full time employees not eligible for
inclusion in the General Employees or Police and Firefighters Plans. The creation of this
plan allowed employees previously in the City's dermed contribution 401(a) plan to join
this Plan. In order to switch from the defined contribution 401(a) plan into this defmed
benefit plan, the employees were required to relinquish their holdings in the defined
contribution plan and transfer into this plan.

The Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund, a division of the Florida League of Cities,
administers the Plan.

The annual pension cost and net pension asset (in thousands) for the current year was as
follows:
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued)

Management Employees (Continued)

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension asset
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Increase in net pension asset
Net pension asset, beginning ofyear

Net pension asset, end ofyear

$ 575
(40)
29

564
788
224
648

$872

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the
October 1, 2006 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age norma] actuarial cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 8.0% investment rate of return (net of
administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%.
Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component 00.75%.

The assumptions include a post-retirement benefit increase of 2.25% cost of living
adjustment. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the market value. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level percentage open
basis. The remaining amortization period was 40 years.

9/30/2006
9/30/2007
9/30/2008

Three-Year Trend Infonnation
In Thousands

Annual Percentage
Pension ofAPe

Fiscal Year Ended Cost (APe) ~ontributed

$ 411 149%
419 167%
564 140%

Funded Status and Funding Progress

Net
Pension

A§.~~

$ 292
648
872

The funded status ofthe Plan as of October 1, 2007 is as follows (in thousands):

Actuarial UAALasa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payron Payroll

Date (~) (Q) ~ (a+b) (£1 ((b-a)+c)

October 1, 2007* $ 10,474 $ 16,483 $ 6,009 63.5% $ 2,428 247.5%

*Actuarial accrued liability is calculated using the entry age nonnal cost method.
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CITY OF NORm MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 11. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

3. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued)

Management Employees (Continued)

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
(RSI) foHowing the notes to the basic financial statements, presents trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

Additional infonnation as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate ofreturn*
Projected salary increases*
Cost of living adjustments

*Inc1udes inflation at 3.75%.

NOTE 12. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

October 1,2007
Frozen entry age
Level percent open
30 years
Market value

8.00%
4.00% - 4.50%
2.25%

The City is a single employer that contributes to the City of North Miami Beach Money Purchase
Plan, which is a defmed contribution pension plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code 401(a). When it was originally established, the Plan was limited to upper management,
department heads and their assistants. Effective February 2003, the plan is limited to the six
employees who did not elect to transfer to the defined benefit Management plan (see Note 10).
As of September 30, 2008 there are two remaining employees contributing to the plan. Effective
January 1, 2003, the City contributes 17% of annual covered payroll and the employees are
required to contribute 8%. Prior to January 1, 2003, the City contributed 17% and the employees
contributed 7%. Employer contributions for fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 were
approximately $57,400 while the employee contributions were approximately $27,000. Plan
provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the City
Manager.
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CITY OF NORTH M1AMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

NOTE 13. CO~TYREDEVELOPMENTAGENCY

North Miami Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (NMBCRA) Component Unit

The NMBCRA incurred the following expenditures during the fiscal year ended September 30,
2008:

Expenditures and transfers $1,955.489

In 2008, the following projects were funded:
• Continued bi-monthly meeting of the Redevelopment Advisory Board.
• Continued to update and analyze the NMB Master Plan.
• Funded street reconstruction and utility improvements.
• Completed a retail feasibility study to determine likely retail chain candidates for

location within the district.
• Completed appraisals of seven properties within the district.

DUling fiscal year 2008, the City drew down $4 million of the $8 million lines of credit to
finance property acquisition and street and utility reconstruction.

Also in fiscal year 2008, theCRA repaid the City the remaining $60,200 of the original
$86,000 eRA advance.

NOTE 14. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Net assets of the business-type activities, as of October 1, 2007, were restated to reflect the
adjustment to correct the opening balances for retainage liabilities on construction projects as
noted below:

Net assets· beginning, as previously stated
To properly reflect the recording of retainage liabilities

Net assets - beginning, as stated
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARYCOMPNUSONSCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Variance
with Final
Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Property taxes $ 17,365,992 $17,365,992 $17,620,914 $ 254,922

Franchise fees:
Florida Power & Light 1,660,000 1,660,000 1,823,667 163,667
Towing 2,750 2,750 1,950 (800)
Gas and propane 59,500 59,500 72,796 13,296
Bus shelters 9,200 9,200 7,200 (2,000)

Total franchise fees 1,731,450 1,731,450 1,905,613 174,163

Utility taxes:
Florida Power & Light 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,940,915 340,915
Gas, propane and oil 80,300 80,300 82,276 1,976
N.M.B. Water & Sewer 380,000 380,000 428,767 48,767

Total utility taxes 2,060,300 2,060,300 2,451,958 391,658

Communication service tax 2,450,000 2,450,000 2,431,020 (18,980)

Other taxes 558,349 802,294 806,035 3,741

Licenses and permits:
Business tax receipts 1,018,100 1,018,100 960,950 (57,150)
Building permits and fees 1,510,420 1,510,420 1,121,860 (388,560)

Total licenses and permits 2,528,520 2,528,520 2,082,810 (445,710)

Intergovernmental:
Sales tax 2,796,819 2,796,819 2,585,959 (210,860)
Shared revenues 745,507 745,507 689,240 (56,267)
Local option gas tax 851,955 851,955 810,039 (41,916)
Beverage licenses 30,000 30,000 28,227 (1,773)
Other state revenue 40,700 40,700 43,793 3,093
County revenue 71,500 71,500 141,140 69,640
Federal revenue - __82,837 82,837

Total intergovernmental 4,536,481 4,536,481 4,381,235 (155,246)

(Continued)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMAnON

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

(Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance
with Final
Budget­
Positive

(Negative)

Charges for services:
Sanitation fees
General services
Recreation fees
County sewer
Police services
Recycling and maintenance charges

Total charges for services

Fines and forfeitures:
Traffic and parking
Local ordinance violations
Library

Total fines and forfeitures

Other:
Billing surcharge (F.S. 180.191)
Impact fees
Interest
Miscellaneous
Use of surplus

Total other

Total revenues

$ 8,408,000 $ 8,408,000 $ 8,407,544 $ (456)
1,170,700 1,170,700 1,262,325 91,625

596,000 601,167 593,835 (7,332)
115,000 115,000 123,327 8,327
120,800 120,800 258,913 138,113
162,363 187,363 266,730 79,367

10,572,863 10,603,030 10,912,674 309,644

150,000 150,000 349,393 199,393
111,000 198,843 187,658 (11,185)

28,000 28,000 29,867 1,867

289,0_QQ_ 376,843 566,918 190,075

4,585,000 4,585,000 5,208,700 623,700
186,154 186,154

128,000 128,000 98,247 (29,753)
432,100 555,389 661,891 106,502

6,157 316,799 (316,799)

5,151,257 5,585,188 6,154,992 569,804

47,244,212 48,040,098 49,314,169 1,274,071

Current expenditures:
General government:

Administrative
Legislative
Executive
Human resources
Finance

Total general government

Police services
Library
Parks and recreation
Public services

Total current expenditures

1,531,111
400,129

7,307,533
3,111,836
2,807,698

15,158,307

20,108,081
990,559

4,103,098
9,938,183

50,298,228

1,619,640
436,126

6,014,191
3,383,735
2,948,374

14,402,066

20,627,616
990,697

4,189,327
10,135,516

50,345,222

1,592,635
429,027

5,724,617
2,905,661
2,911,338

13,563,278

20,691,683
966,652

3,821,155
10,095,650

49,138,418

27,005
7,099

289,574
478,074

__37-,-,0~§.

838,788

(64,067)
24,045

368,172
39,866

1,206,804

(Continued)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
(Continued)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance
with Final
Budget ­
Positive

(Negative)

Capitai outlay:
General government:

Administrative $ - $ 3,500 $ 3,467 $ 33

Executive 5,000 391,729 381,867 9,862

Human resources 6,157
Finance 8,600 6,840 1,760

Total general government 11,157 403,829 392,174 11,655

Police services 167,039 88,006 86,233 1,773

Library 60,768 60,768 60,765 3
Parks and recreation 2,000 49,351 48,159 1,192

Public services 254,780 276,786 (22,006)

Total capital outlay _____2~~2§_! 856,734 864,117 (7,383)

Debt service:
Principal 945,987 946,177 944,989 1,188
Interest 94,693 94,709 84,968 9,741

Total debt service 1,040,680 1,040,886 1,029,957 10,929

Total expenditures 51,579,872 52,242,842 51,032,492 1,210,350

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 5,705,307 5,705,307 5,642,107 (63,200)

Transfers out (1,369,647) (1,502,563) (1,499,011) 3,552

Total other financing sources 4,335,660 4,202,744 4,143,096 (59,648)

Net change in fund balance $ - $ - $ 2,424,773 $ (2,424,773)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTESTOBUDGETARYCOMPNUSONSCHEDULE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE 1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are adopted for the general fund on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, except for encumbrances.

1. Prior to July 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a budget estimate of the
revenues and expenditures for all City departments and divisions for the fiscal year
commencing the following October 1.

2. Upon receipt of the annual budget estimates, the City Council holds various budget
workshops to review and amend the proposed budget.

3. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayers' comments.

4. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

5. No department may legally expend or contract to expend amounts in excess of amounts
appropriated for any department within an individual fund. Budget appropriations lapse at
year end.

6. The adopted budget may be amended as follows:

a) The City Manager can approve line item adjustments within a department. The legal
level of budgetary control is at the departmental level. The City Council approves all
other budget amendments.

b) The City Council approves supplemental appropriations. However, the City Manager is
granted authority to amend, modify or otherwise adjust the annual budget to a maximum
limit of $50,000 per individual occurrence. There was $213,825 of supplemental
appropriations and $578,960 of modifications in the general fund during the year ended
September 30, 2008.

7. Encumbrance accounting is used in governmental funds. Encumbered purchase orders
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances to indicate that they are not
available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

NOTE 2. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATION

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the police
services department by $64,067, and in capital outlay expenditures the public senrices department
by $22,006. These excesses were funded by greater than anticipated revenues.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

NOTESTOBUDGETARYCOMPA~SONSCHEDULE

(Continued)

NOTE 3. BUDGET/GAAP RECONCILIATION

The following schedule reconciles the amounts on the budgetary comparison schedule to the
amounts on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances-governmental
funds:

General Fund
Net change in fund balance - actual amounts - budgetary basis - as reported on
the budgetary comparison schedule (Page 74) $ 2,424,773

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Uses/outflows of resources:

Encumbrances for equipment and supplies ordered but not received are
reported in the year the orders are placed for budgetary purposes, but are
reported in the year the equipment and supplies are received for GAAP
financial reporting purposes (675,445)

Net change in fund balance - General Fund - GAAP basis - as reported on the
statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances governmental
funds (Page 23) $ 1,749,328
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Fiscal

Year
Ended

September 30,

CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

RETIREMENT PLAN FOR GENERAL EMPLOYEES

(In Thousands)

Annual
Required

Contribution
Percentage

Contributed

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

$ 1,548

1,695

1,739

1,830

2,115

2,272
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS AND OTHER CONTRIBUTING ENTITlES

SEPTEMBER 30,2008

RETIREMENT PLAN FOR POLICE OFFICERS AND FIREFIGHTERS

In Thousands
Annual

Fiscal Required Employer State Total Percentage
Year Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributed

2003 $ 1,892 $ 1,900 $ 402 $ 2,302 122%

2004 2,739 2,740 666 3,406 124%

2005 2,692 2,587 562 3,149 117%

2006 3,316 3,316 515 3,831 116%

2007 3,621 3,656 737 4,393 121%

2008 4,138 4,338 759 5,097 123%
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

RETIREIv1ENT PLAN FOR GENERAL MANAGEIv1ENT EMPLOYEES

Fiscal (In Thousands)

Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage

September 30, Contribution Contributed

2003 $ 345 121%

2004 519 100%

2005 550 116%

2006 410 168%

2007 430 190%

2008 575 137%
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTMY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

SEPTE:tvffiER 30, 2008

RETIREMENT PLAN FOR GENERAL EMPLOYEES

Actuarial Unfunded VAAL
Accrued Actuarial as a

Actuarial Liability Accrued Percentage
Value (AAL) Liability Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation of Assets Entry Age (VAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date W ili} (b) - Ca) (a) 1(b) [f2 (b-a) / (e)

10/1/2002 $ 39,872 $ 46,110 $ 6,238 86.5% $ 10,842 57.5%

10/1/2003 44,423 50,447 6,024 88.1% 12,035 50.1%

101112004 44,968 54,772 9,804 82.1% 12,467 78.6%

101112005 45,628 58,943 13,315 77.4% 12,749 104.4%

101112006 48,554 63,645 15,091 76.3% 12,853 117.4%

10/112007 53,576 67,210 13,634 79.7% 13,112 104.0%

Note: Dollar amounts in thousands.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

RETIREMENT PLAN FOR POLICE OFFICERS AND FIREFIGHTERS

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL
Accrued Actuarial as a

Actuarial Liability Accrued Percentage
Value (AAL) Liability Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date W ili2 (b) - (a) (a) 1 (b) !f} (b-a) 1(c)

10/112002 $ 42,552 $ 62,481 $ 19,929 68.1% $ 7,656 260.3%

10/l/2003 46,360 70,330 23,970 65.9% 7,767 308.6%

10/1/2004 46,762 77,714 30,952 60.2% 8,137 380.4%

10/1/2005 47,170 84,260 37,090 56.0% 8,115 457.1%

101l/2006 50,986 90,872 39,886 56.1% 8,571 465.4%

10/1/2007 57,040 95,564 38,524 59.7% 9,609 400.9%

Note: Dollar amounts in thousands.
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CITY OF NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

RETIREMENT PLAN FOR GENeRAL MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL
Accrued Actuarial as a

Actuarial Liability Accrued Percentage
Value AAL- Liability Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation ofAssets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Dat~ (ill ill (b) - (a) (a) / (b) W (b-a) / (c)

10/1/2003 $ 4,541 $ 10,136 $ 5,595 44.8% $ 2,479 225.7%

10/1/2004 5,741 11,448 5,707 50.1% 2,775 205.7%

1011/2005 7,215 13,028 5,813 55.4% 2,412 241.0%

10/1/2006 8,762 14,676 5,914 59.7% 2,290 258.3%

10/1/2007 10,474 16,483 6,009 63.5% 2,428 247.5%

Note: Dollar amounts in thousands

Note: Prior to 10/1/2002, the plan did not exist.
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